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MISSION
Our lifeblood is service. Everyday, we open our doors and 
provide seamless value-added service to Filipinos who are 

working hard to earn and save for a brighter future.

VISION
We envision a community where everyone has equal 
access to quality financial services and everybody is 

empowered to make wiser financial decisions.

OUR VALUES
Family First 

Knowledge is Power 
Confidence is Gold 

Health is Wealth 
United we stand, divided we fall.
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In 2019,  the guiding principle of Pacific Ace Bank’s activities is Community. 
While the bank was first established to offer value added financial services to 
the OFWs, our ultimate goal was always to create a community bank that 
enables access to banking services and products that our underprivileged 
members of the community are traditionally excluded from.

We have worked to fulfill Pacific Ace Savings Bank’s mission in three areas.

In our business strategy, our central focus has been to not only grant access to 
capital to micro entrepreneurs but also to assist and uplift our small business 
clients with coaching and guidance to build and grow their businesses.

In the digital space, we have developed our social media channels to be a free 
and accessible customer service line, an educational source for 
entrepreneurial knowledge, and a virtual community meeting place for our 
clients to support each other in their small business journey. 

Lastly, we are constructing a Green Building center promoting ecology and 
self-sustainability. We hope to create a center that  welcomes all our 
community members and provides a physical space where they can engage 
with one another in educational and micro-entrepreneurial pursuits. 

In 2020,  we face the unprecedented 
health and social challenges of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. More than ever, 
Pacific Ace Savings Bank remains 
resolute in its outreach and support of 
the most fragile and underprivileged. 
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2019 was a challenging year as we focused our efforts on turning Pacific 
Ace Savings Bank from being primarily an OFW savings bank to a 
community bank . 

It was a period of outreach and learning, as we ventured into the 
community, striving to learn about their needs and aspirations and as a 
result, re-thinking how Pacific Ace Savings Bank could best serve our 
future clients.

We faced many obstacles. But throughout,  I am filled with pride at the  
dedication of our team to the bank’s mission and vision. 

From what we learned, we pivoted when needed and fine tuned our 
processes. As a result, Pacific Ace Savings Bank  assets increased  by 
25%, deposits by 28%, loans by 69% and our interest income by 110%.   

The allowance of credit loss of P10.6M brought down our net income by 
15%, but we are confident that these losses will be collected by 2020.

I give my heartfelt thanks to the Pacific Ace Savings Bank team for their 
perseverance and enthusiasm to serve the unbanked and 
underprivileged members of our community.
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MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Total assets have increased by 25% because of increased liquid assets of 
P100 million and P37 million in loans.  

Total liabilities have increased by 30% due to increased deposits of P79 
million and electronic money of P8 million.  The bank has no liabilities with 
other entities and no loan applications.  The bank maintains its high liquidity 
ratio of 130% and positive maturity matching, which means that it has sufficient 
funds to pay the public in case of liquidation. 

Total equity has increased by 6% due to net income earned of over P7 million 
for the year.  It is the second year of net income from grave losses in 2016 and 
2017.  This indicator is simply a function of the Management’s  effort since 
2018  to turn the bank’s focus to service the unbanked, underprivileged and 
below poverty line members of the community.  With this momentum, 
considering the uncontrollable economic and health challenges, the bank 
expects to maintain the positive growth at least at par with the present 
performance.
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MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

With its focus on loans and short-term investments, the bank managed to 
reach a P15 million increase (ie a 110%  increase) on its net interest income.   
The Bank’s loan receivables earn effective interest rates ranging from 15.00% 
to 30.00%. Loan terms range between one (1) month up to ten (10) years.
 
The Bank’s savings deposit liabilities include compulsory and voluntary 
savings that earn from 0.30% to 1.50% per annum while time deposits have 
interest rates of 1.50% to 3.50%.
 
Moreover, the Bank’s savings deposits or due from other banks earn interest 
rates of 0.25%. In order to manage its net interest margin, the bank places its 
excess funds in high yield investments and other short-term time deposits with 
interest rates ranging from 4.125% to 6.28%.

Likewise, the bank is facing challenges on the deterioration of its asset quality 
due to increasing past due ratio of loans and accounts receivables. The 
financial performance is affected by a P2.3 million loss.  The bank’s earnings 
per share is P10.31/share and book value per share is P126.38/share.
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MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

CHANGES IN DEPOSIT 
LIABILITIES

Deposits have increased by 79 
million.   This significant 
increase in deposits and the 
number of depositors are the 
result of strengthened deposit 
products.  The varied products 
( Nation Builder, Dream savers, 
Wow, Asenso and CoolKids) 
each target different needs of 
our target customers.

Despite being a stand-alone 
bank, PASB has reached an 

additional 5,000 customers or 
28% increase from the 

previous year,  particularly in 
savings account acquisitions.

The bank’s transactions are 
straightforward: deposits and 

loans.   The simplicity of the 
banking offerings provides a 

clear and understandable 
value proposition to its target 

customers.
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MILESTONES
POSITIVE RESULT OF OPERATIONS

CHANGES IN LOAN PORTFOLIO

The loan portfolio has increased by P37 
million (69%) primarily due to additional 
business loans of P23 million.  
Consumer loans have also increased by 
137%.

The bank also added 569 borrowers as 
of year-end.   Comparing the result with 
the deposits,  the 25% LDR is also an 
improvement from last year’s 19%.  
Excess funds not released as loans are 
deposited to other banks with interest 
rates ranging from 4.125% to 6.28%.

As shown in the graph, the 
bank’s main target 

customers are the micro, 
small and medium 

enterprises, followed by 
the employees availing 

personal loans.
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MILESTONES
BSP RATING IMPROVEMENT

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas regularly monitors  Pacific Ace Savings Bank’s 
compliance with the laws and regulations to ensure its adherence  to the 
standards of the banking industries in the Philippines. 

As a result of Bangko Central’s 2019 general examination, the bank has 
improved its rating in the following risk areas. 

With the highest rate of 5, the bank is able to achieve and maintain the 
“acceptable” performance with “4” rating.   

Currently, given our business model to serve the unbanked, underprivileged 
and below poverty line members of the community, the Pacific Ace Savings 
Bank  has a stable and increasing income source resulting in a  “3” rating in 
Earnings.  Despite this, the Pacific Ace Savings Bank continues  to reach out to 
more micro and super-micro-entrepreneurs, who are otherwise unable to 
engage in financial services with large establishment banks within the area of 
Olongapo, Zambales and Bataan.

Risk Area Overall Risk CAMELS Rating
 C - apital Adequacy Acceptable 4
 A - sset Quality / Credit Risk Acceptable 4
 M - anagement Acceptable 3
 E - arnings Acceptable 3
 L - iquidity Acceptable 4
 S - ensitivity to Market Acceptable 4
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BUSINESS MODEL
SAVINGS, CHECKING & eMONEY and MORE

SAVINGS CHECKING

TIME DEPOSIT

Special Savings

WOW Savings Account

Seaman Dream Savers

Regular Savings

Dream Savers Regular

Coolkids Savings

AGAP Savings

Automatic Transfer Account

ASENSO SA (Loan Clients)

ATM Payroll

Sikap

Nation Builder (Corporate)

Chequemate (Personal)

ASENSO CA (Loan Clients)

Peso Time Deposit

FCDU Time Deposit

eMONEY
Family Cash Card

(OFW Remitter and Beneficiaries)

ATM SERVICES

As Acquirer - 2 ATM Terminals in Subic and Paranaque

As Issuer - almost 30,000 ATMs nationwide 10



BUSINESS MODEL

SAVINGS, LOANS & CHECKING ACCOUNTS
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BUSINESS MODEL
LOANS

NATION BUILDER (Secured)
Agri Loan

Micro-Business Loan

Housing Loan

Consumer Loan

Vehicle Loan

Small and Medium Loan

ASENSO LOAN
Agri Loan

Micro-Business Loan

Housing Loan

Consumer Loan

SUPER MICRO LOAN
AGAP Loan
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CAPITAL ADEQUACY
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE & CAPITAL ADEQUACY
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IMPROVED FINANCIAL RATIO
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

MORE OFWs SERVED

Our Fast Cash Card facility connects our modern day hero OFWs to their 
families by enabling them to send their remittance in real time, with more 
convenience and less fees using the individual electronic banking cards that 
we issue to each family member. The same card empowers them to do 
cashless transactions and have a first-hand experience at keeping their 
savings in the bank.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

LOCAL CLIENTS SERVED

As part of Pacific Ace Savings Bank’s commitment to serve the unbanked and 
below poverty line  community members, we have increased our pool of loan 
clients by 49%. The main contributor is business loans which showed a 67% 
increase, as we support and include micro and super-micro entrepreneurs. 
Our loan portfolio saw a remarkable increase of PHP 91.4 million comprising 
a total of 1,741 borrowers of which 1,327 come from the Action Against 
Poverty (AGAP) program.

Beyond providing loan assistance, 
Pacific Ace Savings Bank provides 
briefing and coaching sessions to  
help our clients grow their micro 
businesses. Topics include market 
strategy development, resource 
allocation, and administrative 
accounting.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

LOCAL CLIENTS SERVED

The bank’s goal is not just to provide capital for micro-entrepreneurs but also 
help them appreciate the value of savings for their future.  As a result, total 
deposits from AGAP and ASENSO customers were increased to P10.4 million 
with total customers of 2,443.

Also, the bank’s total account holders increased by 28%, with total deposits 
of P364 million.  One of the reasons why the bank produced this remarkable 
increase is due to streamlined customer due diligence, wherein we require 
customers only 1 valid ID and very minimal initial deposits.  With these 
financial inclusion initiatives, our goal is to really enable our customers to use 
the service of financial institutions like Pacific Ace Savings Bank, Inc. and to 
instill to them the importance of savings and banking services in building the 
nation.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

WE CARE CENTER

The We Care Center (WCC), our bank’s remote customer service center, moved its 
operations to Subic under Pacific Ace Savings Bank, Inc. in 2018.  It had been 
previously outsourced to Pacific Ace Forex HK, LTD.  Initially, WCC’s focus was to 
serve the remitters and beneficiaries’ accounts opening and remittance concerns.  
As the bank grows and expands, WCC is committed to serving local clients 
inquiries regarding its products and services, such as deposit account opening, 
loan applications, as well as complaint handling, particularly ADNCD  (Auto-Debit 
No Cash Dispense error) during ATM transactions.

We Care Center serves the bank’s local clients and OFWs (both remitters and their 
beneficiaries in the Philippines), seven days a week. The team’s goal is to ensure 
timely resolution of all complaints and concerns particularly with regards to 
remittance and account opening transactions.

The WCC, which is composed of 
one (1) Manager and five (5) agents, 
services up to 4,000 client inquiries 
per month. Typical time to resolve 
customer issues is 24-48 hours. 
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

SOCIAL MEDIA INITIATIVES

In 2018, Pacific Ace Savings Bank sought to engage with our local community in 
the digital space. Given the high penetration of Facebook in the Philippines, we 
created the following initiatives on the platform:

A Help Desk on  Facebook messenger  
The We Care Center is available 7 days a week to assist customers via messenger 
chat. This gives our clients a free and easily accessible social media channel to 
send their queries.

A Facebook feed curated for local micro-entrepreneurs
Through the Pacific Ace Savings Bank Facebook business page, we are able to 
publish informative and educational articles relevant to our target customers. Our 
themes include money saving tips, articles on small business and 
entrepreneurship, and timely updates on our products and services and local 
news. We also showcase success stories of our micro entrepreneur clients.

Action Group Against Poverty (AGAP) Facebook Group 
We created the facebook group Action Group Against Poverty exclusive to PASB 
clients. This provided an online space where our members may interact and 
support each other by sharing business knowledge and marketing their products 
and services. 
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

SOCIAL MEDIA INITIATIVES

January to March 2019 April to June 2019

July to September 2019 October to December 2019

January to December 2019
22

Because of these initiatives, we are pleased to report that our analytics show an 
increased engagement and following of our Facebook page.



HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

HEAD OFFICE RENOVATION INITIATIVE

We want our physical office to reflect our internal motivations and mission. Hence, 
we are renovating the Pacific Ace Savings Bank complex and making way to 
accommodate the Pacific Ace Community Center.

We are aiming to build a testament to how much we want to uplift the clients that 
we serve who are mostly underprivileged and are below the poverty line. We aim 
to set our structure apart as we envision the new Pacific Ace Building to be the 
greenest building in SBMA and perhaps the entire country.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF MAJOR ACTIVITIES

HEAD OFFICE RENOVATION INITIATIVE
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

The bank’s Risk Management Framework focuses on eight (8) categories of risk namely 
credit, market, interest rate, liquidity, operational, compliance, strategic and reputation 
risk.  

Level of Risk Management Defenses

Risk Management Administration

Risk management process is incorporated in the bank management system and all levels 
of operations/units involved. The respective department heads are risk owners and are 
responsible in identifying risk at their levels by regular monitoring.  To reduce such risks, 
Management focuses on improving operations and oversight function to ensure that 
while risks are decreasing, bank’s operations particularly its financials are continuously 
improving.

Definition of Risk

1. Risk is the possibility of a loss. In all its transactions, a bank faces risks - deposits, 
loans, systems and people. 

2. Risk is an uncertainty of whether events expected or otherwise will have an 
adverse impact on the bank’s capital.

3. Risk can be controlled by having a sound risk management system.

Risk Management Objectives

1. Risk management aims to give and to create value to the bank’s stakeholders.
2. Aside from ensuring high profits, risk management aims to optimize earnings 

potential. The bank does not want to mitigate risks alone, it also looking for 
business opportunities that will give a higher return from its operations.

3. Risk management aims to create an internal environment wherein employees have 
the awareness in assessing risks for institutional gain in every transaction.

4. Controlling risks aims to gain reputation from bank’s stakeholders and regulators.
25



RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

Risk Appetite Statement

The Risk Appetite Statement represents the individual and aggregate level and types of 
risk that a bank is willing to assume in order to achieve its business objectives and 
considering its capability to manage risk. It includes both qualitative and quantitative 
measures expressed relative to earnings, capital, risk measures, liquidity, and other 
relevant measures as appropriate.  The following risk appetite statement is based on risk 
exceptions from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, compliance, internal and external audit, as 
well as historical data that may save the bank from potential loss.

Credit Risk

● PASB shall not have credit exposures to DOSRI (Directors, Officers,  Stockholders 
and Related Interests) and Fringe Benefits to its officers and employees.   

● Past due ratio of 10-15%
● Unsecured loans : not more than 50% of total loan portfolio
● Microfinance loan : at least 50% of total loan portfolio
● As per BSP regulations, maximum single borrower’s limit is 25%.  The Management 

sets limit of 20% of the bank’s net worth for each credit exposure.
● Due From Other Banks shall still maximize P100 million limit per bank to utilize 

excess funds in investments to reputable banks with the highest credit standing.

Market Risk

● Return on Equity : not lower than 8%
● Return on Assets : not lower than 2%
● Net Interest Margin : not lower than 4%
● Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio : not lower than 15%
● PASB sets to maintain positive maturity and repricing gap
● To limit long term investments more than 5 years and to focus investments with 

30-60 days term to ensure funds are readily available
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

RISK MANAGEMENT ADMIN

Liquidity Risk

● Liquidity ratio : not lower than 120%
● Unutilized funds : invested to big banks with short terms

The Management identified top (3) three weak risk management namely:

1. Market risk or earnings due to previous years losses and low net interest margin, 
return on equity and return on assets as compared with other banks;

2. Operational risk due to high attrition rate of employees and officers holding 
sensitive position, weak succession planning, unupdated personnel policy and 
legal cases involving ex-employees of the bank; and

3. Strategic risk due to weak monitoring and actions to resolve negative variances in 
achieving business objectives and strategies.  Such risks are the Managements 
priority to improve in the succeeding years.

The Board of Directors is responsible for:

A. Approving strategies and policies;
B. Understanding the risks;
C. Ensuring that senior management takes necessary steps to identify, measure, 

monitor, and control the risks;
D. Approving organization structure; and
E. Ensuring that senior management is monitoring the continued effectiveness of the 

internal control system.

The board of directors discusses the risk management at least quarterly and monthly 
whenever there is high risk exposures that need immediate resolution and attention from 
the management. 

Duties and Responsibilities:

The board of directors is responsible for overall current and future risk appetite, oversee 
senior management’s adherence to the risk appetite statement, and report on the state of 
risk culture of the bank.  The board shall: 27



RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Duties and Responsibilities:

The board of directors is responsible for overall current and future risk appetite, oversee 
senior management’s adherence to the risk appetite statement, and report on the state of 
risk culture of the bank.  The board shall:

1. Oversee the risk management framework.  The board shall oversee the enterprise 
risk management framework and ensure that there is periodic review of the 
effectiveness of the risk management systems and recovery plans.  It shall ensure 
that corrective actions are promptly implemented to address risk management 
concerns.

2. Oversee adherence to risk appetite. The board shall ensure that the current and 
emerging risk exposures are consistent with the bank’s strategic direction and 
overall risk appetite.  It shall assess the overall status of adherence to the risk 
appetite based on the quality of compliance with the limit structure, policies, and 
procedures relating to risk management and control, and performance of 
management, among others.

3. Oversee the risk management function.  The board shall be responsible for the 
appointment/selection, remuneration, and dismissal of the board members.  It shall 
also ensure that the risk management function has adequate resources and 
effectively oversees the risk-taking activities of the bank. 28



ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

GOVERNANCE & CULTURE

Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Program is adopted to support governments, 
law enforcement agencies and international bodies such as the Financial Action Task 
Force in their efforts to combat the use of the financial system for the laundering of the 
proceeds crime and terrorism.

To ensure that the risks associated with money-laundering such as counterparty, 
reputational, operational, and compliance risks are identified, assessed, monitored and 
mitigated, the following were adopted:

1. Board of Directors – The Board has the ultimate duties and responsibilities to 
ensure full compliance with money laundering and terrorist financing prevention 
program.  As such, the board through the Compliance Office and Internal Audit 
regularly updated on the matters related to Anti-Money Laundering and terrorist 
financing compliance and risk management.

2. Compliance Office – Compliance is the main responsible for the management of 
the implementation of this Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention 
Program (MLPP) of the bank.  This includes achieving the bank’s goals through 
planning, organizing, leading, and controlling. Compliance office is independent 
and has direct access/reporting lines to board of directors.  The compliance office 
conduct regular compliance checking covering the evaluation of AMLA process, 
policies and procedures in the customer identification and acceptance, reporting 
of Covered and Suspicious Transactions, and monitoring systems and record 
retention. Senior management and board of directors are consistently informed on 
the non-compliance of the Bank to money laundering and terrorist prevention 
program including management action to address deficiencies.  Compliance Office 
shall Inform all responsible officers and employees of all issuances by the BSP and 
AMLC; alert the president, board of directors and audit committee if it believes that 
the bank is failing to appropriately address AMLA issues and organize the timing 
and content of AML training of officers and employees including regular refresher 
trainings. 

3. President – In order to ensure consistent and full compliance with money 
laundering and terrorist financing prevention program, the President is also 
responsible to monitor the compliance of CASA department and other concerned 
units in Anti-Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing.
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ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

GOVERNANCE & CULTURE

Board of Directors

President

Bank Manager Chief Compliance Officer Internal Auditor

Audit Committee

Albeit the bank has low risk exposures with Anti-Money Laundering Act as it primarily 
serves the unbanked, underprivileged and below poverty line members of the local 
community in Olongapo, Zambales and Bataan, as well as the long-time Overseas Filipino 
Worker (OFW) customers in Hong Kong and Macau who are profiled as “Low risk 
customers”, the Bank has observed strict compliance with AML to ensure that the Bank 
has no opportunity to be an avenue of money laundering and terrorist financing. The 
Bank retains 98% of the customers as low risk, while the remaining 2% are properly 
identified and monitored.  

Overall, AMLA risk management rating from the recent BSP examination has improved to 
“3” considering the significant improvement  and effort to maintain customer records and 
strengthened front-liners to conduct proper customer due diligence or 
“Know-Your-Customer”. There is also a committed Compliance Officer to equip Bank 
employees, senior management and outsourced counterparties with AMLA updates 
necessary to combat money laundering and terrorist financing. 

 
The Bank is relying with outsourced counter parties such as Pacific Ace Forex HK Ltd. 
and LBC Express Inc. to conduct “face-to-face” interview and card releasing for 
remittance account holders.  

In compliance with BSP Circular No. 1022, 2018 implementing rules and regulations and 
AMLC Resolution No. 148, the Bank is digitizing all customer records and has updated the 
AML policies and procedures. 30



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STRUCTURE & PRACTICES

The board of directors, management, employees, and shareholders have the big role to 
maintain sound strategic business management. The board of directors shall lead the 
bank to create awareness and observance of the principles of good corporate 
governance.  It shall be the board’s responsibility to foster the long-term success of the 
bank and assure its sustained competitiveness in a manner consistent with its fiduciary 
responsibility, which shall exercise in the best interest of the bank, its shareholders, and 
other stakeholders.  The board shall conduct itself with utmost honesty and integrity in 
the discharge of its duties, functions, and responsibilities.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Name Position
Type of 

Directorship

Years 
served as 
director

No. of 
shares

%

1 Verona Joy S. Dio Chairman
Non-
executive

5 years 357,738 29.81%

2 Virginia S. Dio
Director/
President

Executive 18 years 480,000 40.00%

3 Roldan P. Escala Director Executive 5  years 10 0.00%

4
Maria Fatima P. 
Teng Gui

Independent 
Director

Non-
executive

4 years 1 0.00%

5
Ronaldo T.
Castillo Jr.

Independent 
Director

Non-
executive

1 year 1 0.00%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MAJOR DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Oversee the nomination process for members of the board of directors and for 

positions appointed by the board of directors. The board reviews and evaluates 
the qualifications of all persons nominated to the board of directors as well as 
those nominated to other positions requiring appointment by the board of 
directors such as President and equivalent rank and heads of department. The 
board shall also discuss matters pertaining to the assignment to members of the 
board of directors and audit committee, as well as succession plan for the 
members of the board of directors and senior management.

2. Oversee the continuing education program for the board of directors. The board 
shall ensure allocation of sufficient time, budget and other resources for the 
continuing education of directors, and draw on external expertise as needed. The 
committee shall establish and ensure effective implementation of policy for 
on-boarding/orientation program for first time directors and annual continuing 
education for all directors.  For this purpose, the orientation program for first time 
directors shall be for at least eight (8) hours, while the annual continuing training 
shall be at least for four (4) hours. The training programs should cover topics 
relevant in carrying out their duties and responsibilities as directors.

3. Oversee the performance evaluation process. The committee shall oversee the 
periodic evaluation of contribution and performance (e.g., competence, candor, 
attendance, preparedness and participation) of the board of directors, board-level 
committees, and senior management. Internal guidelines shall be adopted that 
address the competing time commitments of directors serving on multiple boards.

4. Oversee the design and operation of the remuneration and other incentives policy. 
The committee shall ensure that the remuneration and other incentives policy is 
aligned with operating and risk culture as well as with the strategic and financial 
interest of Bank, promotes good performance and conveys acceptable risk taking 
behavior defined under its Code of Ethics, and complies with legal and regulatory 
requirements. It shall work closely with the BSFI’s risk oversight committee in 
evaluating the incentives created by the remuneration system. In particular, the risk 
oversight committee shall examine whether incentives provided by the 
remuneration system take into consideration risk, capital, and likelihood and timing 
of earnings. Moreover, it shall monitor and review the remuneration and other 
incentives policy including plans, processes and outcomes to ensure that it 
operates and achieves the objectives as intended.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MAJOR BOD FUNCTIONS

The board of directors’ primary goal is to maintain trust and confidence within the Bank.  
Directors shall act in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability and fairness.  
Directors are primarily responsible for approving and overseeing the implementation of 
the bank’s strategic objectives, risk strategy, corporate governance, and corporate 
values.  They are also responsible in overseeing the performance of senior management 
in as far as managing the day to day affairs of the bank.  The Board shall approve policies 
on all major business activities such as investments, loans, assets and liability 
management, trust, business plan and budget.  Moreover, defining the Bank’s level of risk 
tolerance and mechanism to monitor in such business activities shall form part of its 
responsibilities. 

● Defines the corporate culture and values;
● Approves objectives and strategies and overseeing management’s implementation
● Appoints and selects senior management, principal officers and remuneration and 

incentives of employees
● Approves and oversees implementation of the corporate governance framework;
● Approves and oversees the implementation of the risk governance framework

The Chairperson
The Chairperson of the board of directors shall provide leadership in the board of 
directors. She shall ensure effective functioning of the board of directors, including
maintaining a relationship of trust with members of the board of directors. Moreover, she 
shall:

● Ensure holding of regular Board meeting and relevant matters are covered;
● Ensure that the meeting agenda focuses on strategic matters including discussion 

on risk appetites and key governance concerns;
● Ensure a sound decision making process;
● Encourage and promote critical discussion;
● Ensure that dissenting views can be expressed and discussed within the 

decision-making process;
● Ensure that members of the board of directors receives accurate, timely, and 

relevant information;
● Ensure the conduct of proper orientation for first time directors and provide 

training opportunities for all directors; and
● Ensure conduct of performance evaluation of the board of directors at least once a 

year
33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MAJOR BOD FUNCTIONS

The President 
● Overall champion of bank’s operations;
● Sets the tone of good governance from the top management;
● Oversees the day-to-day management of the bank;
● Ensures that duties are effectively delegated to the staff and to establish a 

management structure that promotes accountability and transparency;
● Promotes and strengthens check and balance system in the bank;
● Approves significant and material bank transactions

The Director 
● Remains fit and proper for the position for the duration of his term;
● Conducts fair business transactions with the bank and to ensure that personal 

interest does not bias board decisions,
● Acts honestly and in good faith, with loyalty and in the best interest of the bank, its 

stockholders, and other stakeholders such as its depositors, investors, borrowers, 
other clients and general public;

● Devotes time and attention necessary to properly discharge their duties and 
responsibilities;

● Acts judiciously;
● Contributes significantly to the decision-making process of the board;
● Exercises independent judgment;
● Understands the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the bank, 

including the content of its articles of incorporation and by-laws, the requirements 
of BSP and other regulatory agencies;

● Observes confidentiality

**Independent directors and chairman are non-executive and are not part of bank’s 
day-to-day operation
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOD QUALIFICATIONS

Our Directors Their Qualifications and Experiences

Verona Joy S. Dio
Chairman
Filipino, 41 years old

Ms. Dio is appointed as a chairman of the board of directors 
since September 2017.  She became a director of the bank since 
2015.  She completed the seminar on Corporate Governance, 
Risk Management, Credit Risk Management and AMLA Law.  
Stockholder in Pacific Ace Management Corporation, Westdale 
Philippines, Inc. and Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corp.

Virginia S. Dio
Director
Filipino, 71 years old

Mrs. Dio is a director since 2002. She assumed the position as 
chairman of the board of directors in 2002 to 2017.  She is also 
the major stockholder of other Pacific Ace companies in the 
Philippines, Hongkong and Macau. Her expertise is primarily in 
managing Pacific Ace Group of Companies both in the 
Philippines and Hongkong. She is the founder of Pacific Ace Her 
Cause Foundation now Pacific Ace Subic Foundation, Inc. She 
finished BS Commerce Major in Accounting at the University of 
the East. She attended seminars on Management, Corporate 
Planning, Thrift Banking Operations, Corporate Governance, 
AMLA, Customer Service and Emergency Preparedness.

Roldan P. Escala
Director
Filipino, 46 years old

Mr. Escala is a director since 2014.  He is holding a concurrent 
position as manager at Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corporation, a 
sister company of the bank whose major business is subleasing 
of commercial spaces.  He is a stockholder in Westdale 
Philippines, Inc. and Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corp.  He finished BS 
Computer Science in San Sebastian College-Recolletos.  He 
attended trainings on corporate governance and risk 
management, AMLA Law, customer service for banking 
operations, disaster/emergency preparedness, bancnet and 
microfinance and fraud warning signs and controls.
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BOD QUALIFICATIONS

Our Directors Their Qualifications and Experiences

Maria Fatima P. Teng Gui
Independent Director
Filipino, 41 years old

Ms. Teng gui is a director and chairman of the audit committee 
since 2015.  She is an owner of TG&P Ventures, TGP Gas Station 
and TG&P Business Ventures Inc, all are non-financial 
institutions.  Her expertise is managing internal audit, controls 
and compliance.  She attended corporate governance and risk 
management seminar and regular AMLA updates.

Ronaldo T. Castillo, Jr.
Independent Director
Filipino, 29 years old

Mr. Castillo is appointed as independent director in March 2019.  
He finished Bachelor of Laws at University of Pasay in 2017 and 
Bachelor of Science in Secondary Education at City University of 
Pasay in 2011.  His expertise is managing legal risk and 
corporate social responsibility.  He attended Corporate 
Governance Seminar, Seminar on AMLA Updates and other 
related trainings.
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SELECTION PROCESS

1. The board of directors is informed of the need to conduct selection/nomination at 
least three months before the position will be vacated or replaced.

2. Nomination will be forwarded to the HR personnel who then will forward to the 
board of directors.

3. Personal interview will be conducted by the Chairman and the President in 
whatever means either “face-to-face” or electronic interview.

4. The board of directors shall assign director to collaborate with HR personnel to 
document the qualifications or to conduct “fit and proper test”.

Fit and Proper Test considers integrity, physical and mental fitness; relevant 
education, financial literally and trainings; knowledge and experience; skills, 
diligence and independence of mind; and sufficiency of time to fully carry out 
responsibilities

5. The assigned  director shall prepare reports and conduct deliberation based on 
the selection criteria as to who shall be the shortlist nominees. 

6. Result of the deliberation shall be submitted to the board of directors for review 
and approval until the appointment is formalized in the next board meeting.

7. For appointed directors, officers with ranked SVP and up, compliance head and 
internal audit head, the compliance officer shall then comply with the submission 
of the bio-data and other relevant documentation to prove qualifications and none 
of the disqualifications to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas within 20 banking days 
after appointment.

8. Appointed director shall attend the Corporate Governance Seminar to any 
accredited training provider of the BSP before final submission of request for 
confirmation with the BSP.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

The board approved Performance Evaluation Program for Board, audit committee and 
outsourced counter parties which are performed at least annually and employees at least 
semi-annually.  The performance evaluation aims to assess bank’s manpower 
compliments and also used by the Management to determine the salary increment of 
each employee based on their performance rating, if any.  The Management’s evaluation 
for outsourced third parties determined whether to continue their service or hire another 
third party.

BASIS OF ASSESSMENT

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors shall be responsible in ensuring the effectiveness and due 
observance of the BSP regulations on Corporate Governance. It shall include overseeing 
periodic performance evaluation of the board and audit committee including executive 
management. An annual self-assessment shall be conducted using performance rating 
code from 1 - 5 to assess their performance in accordance with the following criteria:

1. How well has the Board done its job
2. How well has the Board conducted itself
3. Relationship with the chairman of the board
4. Feedback to the chairman of the board
5. Self-Assessment, viz:

a. Performance of duties and responsibilities as a board member
b. Meeting attendance
c. Reading and keeping minutes and meeting notices
d. Familiarity in by-laws and bank policies
e. Participation in the board meeting
f. Confidentiality

g. Conflict of interest

The result of the evaluation should be discussed with the Board who will be responsible 
in deciding whether each director has been adequately carrying out his duties using the 
criteria stated in the evaluation form.

The result of the evaluation shall be the basis of the Board in recommending continuing 
education of directors and succession plan for the board members and senior officers.  
Self-evaluation shall be conducted annually and result thereof shall be reported during 
the Annual Stockholders and Board Meeting in March of the subsequent year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT PROGRAM

Officers and Staff
Pacific Ace Savings Bank conducts Performance Evaluation for all regular employees at 
least semi-annually.  Performance Evaluation is divided into 2 parts - self-evaluation and 
OIC performance appraisal report.  Results of evaluation is forwarded to Human 
Resource Department for discussion with the President and/or board of directors.  

Self-evaluation consists of Productivity, Teamwork, Organization/Planning, Time 
Management, Problem Solving/Communications, Attendance and Basic Skills. 

OIC Appraisal Report consists of the following:
1. Job Knowledge
2. Communication
3. Problem Solving
4. Productivity
5. Quality of Work
6. Planning and Organization Effectiveness 
7. Teamwork
8. Dependability
9. Enthusiasm towards work challenges

10. Creativity in concepts, creations and output
11. Punctuality in work output and in attendance
12. Involvement in crimes and losses of the company
13. Teamwork and collaboration
14. Values and respect to others
15. Honesty
16. Technical Skills

Performance Evaluation affects employees salaries, promotions, staffing and succession 
planning, manpower requirements and employees drive to improve work effectiveness 
and efficiency.  Performance Evaluation is also being used for regularization of 
probationary employees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

#
Name of
Directors

Position
Board Meetings

Audit Committee 
Meetings

Attended % Attended %

1  Verona Joy S. Dio Chairman 12 100% 4 100%

2  Virginia S. Dio Executive Director 12 100%

3  Roldan P. Escala Executive Director 12 100%

4  Ma. Fatima P. Teng Gui
Independent 
Director

12 100% 4 100%

5  Ronaldo T. Castillo, Jr.*
Independent 
Director

10 100% 4 100%

Total No. of Meetings Held During the Year 12 4

*Appointed in March 28, 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name Position

1 Maria Fatima P. Teng Gui Chairman

2 Verona Joy S. Dio Member

3 Ronaldo Castillo Jr.* Member

*Appointed in March 2019

41

The audit committee is composed of non-executive Chairman and three regular members, 
one of which is an executive and two are non-executive.

1. Oversee the financial reporting framework. AC shall oversee the financial
reporting process, practices, and controls. It shall ensure that the reporting
framework enables the generation and preparation of accurate and comprehensive 
information and reports.

2. Monitor and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control
system. AC shall oversee the implementation of internal control policies and
activities. It shall also ensure that periodic assessment of the internal control system is 
conducted to identify the weaknesses and evaluate its robustness considering the bank’s 
risk profile and strategic direction.

3. Oversee the internal audit function. AC shall be responsible for the
appointment/selection, remuneration, and dismissal of internal auditor. It shall
review and approve the audit scope and frequency. The committee shall ensure that the 
scope covers the review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal controls, including 
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management system. The 
committee shall functionally meet with the head of internal audit and such meetings shall be 
duly minuted and adequately documented. AC shall then review and approve the 
performance and compensation of the head of internal audit, and budget of the internal 
audit function.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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4. Oversee the external audit function. AC shall be responsible for the
appointment, fees, and replacement of external auditor. It shall review and approve the 
engagement contract and ensure that the scope of audit likewise cover areas specifically 
prescribed by the Bangko Sentral and other regulators.

5. Oversee implementation of corrective actions. AC shall receive key audit reports, and 
ensure that senior management is taking necessary corrective actions in a timely manner to 
address the weaknesses, non-compliance with policies, laws, and regulations and other 
issues identified by auditors and other control functions.

6. Investigate significant issues/concerns raised. AC shall have explicit authority to 
investigate any matter within its terms of reference, have full access to and cooperation by 
management, and have full discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its 
meetings.

7. Establish whistleblowing mechanism. AC shall establish and maintain
mechanisms by which officers and staff shall, in confidence, raise concerns about possible 
improprieties or malpractices in matters of financial reporting, internal control, auditing or 
other issues to persons or entities that have the power to take corrective action. It shall 
ensure that arrangements are in place for the independent investigation, appropriate 
follow-up action, and subsequent resolution of complaints.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM

Upon appointment of a new director, the Chairman ensures the orientation of duties and 
responsibilities as well as qualifications and grounds for disqualifications as previously 
mentioned. 

First time directors must attend a Corporate Governance Seminar from qualified external 
training provider. Compliance and Internal Audit Head shall attend trainings and seminars on 
risk-based compliance and internal audit approach and other related external trainings. The 
Management shall allocate budget to provide key officers trainings and seminars relevant to 
their roles, duties and responsibilities.

The President determines the internal and external trainings to be provided for each 
employee. Officers holding sensitive positions such as compliance head, internal audit 
head, chief accountant, loans and AGAP officers and credit investigator are required to 
attend external trainings relevant to their duties and responsibilities. Approved in-house and 
external trainings are all paid by the bank.

In most cases, trainings are presented by the HR department and compliance office and the 
Management identifies and assigns employees who need to attend the training.

The Compliance Department shall conduct a regular annual orientation and re-echo session 
of AMLA updates with the officers and employees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

RETIREMENT & SUCCESSION POLICY

Independent directors may only serve for a maximum cumulative term of (9) nine years.  
The bank does not set retirement limit for board of directors and president as long as 
senior officers are still qualified to perform their duties and responsibilities and passed 
the fit and proper test and minimum requirement in the board meeting attendance.  The 
Management is also improving the retirement benefit program to encourage bank 
employees to stabilize their employment with the bank for more than five (5) years.

The Bank has adopted a succession plan in case of temporary and permanent absences 
of officers and employees holding critical positions to ensure that the operations are not 
affected and oversight functions are relevant to the business operations.  
 
As the bank expands its operations, the board of directors ensures that the review of the 
succession planning process is being done.  This is in preparation for filling up of 
vacancies brought about by expansion, promotion, retirement, among others.  This 
succession plan is created is to ensure that qualified employees are recruited and 
developed to fill each key role within the bank.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

POLICY ON REMUNERATION, DIVIDENDS

REMUNERATION POLICY

Board of directors are not given salaries other than allowance and per diem for every 
meeting attended to ensure that the Management does not take advantage of the bank’s 
funds.  Allowance shall be identified and approved by the board of directors depending 
on the overall bank performance.  The bank’s most highly compensated officers are the 
President,  Chief Accountant and Chief Compliance Officer.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The basis of dividend declaration is from the income of the previous years and the capital 
adequacy ratio not less than the regulatory requirement and not far from the industry 
ratio.  This year, the Bank has not declared dividend.

STRUCTURE OF INTERNAL AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

45

Board of Directors
Verona Joy Dio

Virginia Dio
Roldan P. Escala

Ma. Fatima Teng Gui
Ronaldo Castillo, Jr.

Chief Compliance Officer
Monciar Elenzano

Compliance Officer Trainee

Audit Committee
Ma. Fatima Teng Gui

Verona Joy Dio
Ronaldo Castillo, Jr.

Internal Auditor
Patricia Cabornida

Asst Internal Auditor



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SELF-ASSESSMENT FUNCTION

Internal Auditor
Under the direct supervision of the Audit Committee, the Internal Audit evaluates and 
ensures the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of the Bank. The Internal 
Audit Department is mandated to conduct financial audit, compliance audit, operations 
audit, management audit, and information system audit. It also holds full access rights to 
all activities, information, records, properties, and personnel relevant to the internal audit 
activity.

External Auditor
Romeo G. Torno & Co., CPAs (RGT), is the authorized External Auditors of the Bank for 
2018. It presents an audit plan to the Audit Committee and performs audit risk 
assessment. It also reviewed the internal audit report and compliance with accounting 
standards and regulatory requirements.

Compliance System
The Bank’s compliance system was designed to identify and mitigate business risks, 
which may erode the franchise value of the bank. Business risks include but not limited to 
the following:

● Risks to reputation that arise from internal decisions that may damage a bank’s 
market standing;

● Risks to reputation that arise from internal decision and practices that ultimately 
impinge on the public trust of a bank;

● Risks from the action of a bank that are contrary to the existing regulations and 
identified best practices and reflect weaknesses in the implementation of codes of 
conduct and standard of good practice; and

● Legal risks to the extent that changes in the interpretation or provisions of 
regulations directly affect the bank’s business model.

The Compliance Department is responsible for ensuring that the Bank complies with the 
requirements, policies, circulars, and guidelines issued by BSP, PDIC, BIR, SBMA, SEC 
and other government agencies. It is headed by a Chief Compliance Officer (CCO), which 
is appointed by the Bank’s board of directors and directly reporting to the BOD.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee regularly review the Internal audit and 
compliance program and shall then assigned schedules of internal control based on risk 
prioritization.  It also monitors and assess the timely resolution of the risk exceptions 
noted by the compliance officer, internal and external auditors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. The Bank’s related party transactions for the year are the following:
a. Annual rent paid to Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corporation amounting to 

P1,410,588.00
b. Annual rent paid to Pacific Ace Management Corporation amounting to 

P176,842.08

In order to ensure that related party transactions are arm’s length, rates are 
approved by the Management before the contracts are being made and effective.

2. The Bank has neither material related-party transactions nor loans to DOSRI 
(Directors, Officers, Stockholders and Related Interest) for the year;

3. The Bank’s threshold for material RPT is P2 million;

4. The Bank has no remuneration and other incentives program for directors and 
executive officer;

5. It is the responsibility of the Management to ensure that material RPTs are minimal 
and controlled and that conglomerates and DOS do not take advantage on the 
interests in the bank.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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Pacific Ace Savings Bank, in collaboration 
with Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation 
(PAHER) aims to contribute to the Filipino 
people in the areas of Health, Education 
and Research, by extending Community Aid 
to the Underprivileged and launching 
Self-Employment programs. The Foundation 
is led by the bank’s President, Mrs. Dio, 
whose primary mission is to support 
children with high potential to become 
professionals who will make a positive 
difference in our country someday. Selected 
beneficiaries receive full support and 
educational funding from this project in 
order to ensure their success in their studies 
and proper exposure to more opportunities, 
even in the global arena.

The bank has partnered with PAHER since 
September 29, 2018. PAHER is the acronym 
for the Pacific Ace Her Cause Foundation 
which is an acronym that stands for: 

P - acific
A - ce
H - ealth
E - ducation
R - esearch

C - ommunity
A - id to the 
U - nderprivileged through 
S - elf
E - mployment
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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The creation of the Action Against Poverty 
group and the pre-existing PAHER Foundation 
go hand in hand. AGAP’s mission is to 
empower the poor by arming them with 
previously inaccessible banking tools.  
PAHER’s focuses on the children of AGAP 
members, many of whom come from severely, 
disadvantaged backgrounds, who can be 
assisted through education, extra support and 
financial assistance.

As the Pacific Ace progresses in Subic, the 
development of the community center in the 
new building in Times Square, Subic Bay 
Freeport Zone along with the newly 
renovated head office of the bank is one of 
the highlights in 2019. The Pacific Ace Her 
Cause Foundation also changed  its 
corporate   name to Pacific Ace Subic 
Foundation, Inc. (PASFI)

The activities in Cabalan Center will be 
transferred to the new building and a pilot 
program will be launched in Olongapo City. 
The foundation will serve the adjacent 
communities of the Subic Bay Freeport Zone 
especially those with a focus on impoverished 
areas.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
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The beneficiaries are the students  from grade 1 to College (age ranging from 7 to 21) 
coming from families in need.  Scholars who show a huge potential in Mathematics 
and Science will be able to apply for educational assistance and scholarship grants.  
Children of AGAP members are also eligible to apply for the scholarship.   PASFI also 
plans to conduct free Saturday tutorials to qualified scholars with the aim of 
strengthening their academic competence.

Location: Castillejos Zambales
On July 07, 2019, Pacific Ace Savings 
Bank held a half day Feeding Program 
event at Sitio San Isidro San Pablo , 
Castillejos, Zambales. Food and hygiene 
packs were distributed to 200 children  
ranging from 3 years old to 12 years old. 
Workshops were held on the topics of 
financial savings and public health 
awareness. 

Location: Iram New Cabalan,
Olongapo City

On September 28, 2019 we held another 
half day Feeding Program event at the 
Barangay Hall of Iram in New Cabalan, 
Olongapo City. Food and hygiene packs 
were distributed to  500 children, ages 3 
years 15 years. The children enjoyed the 
games and performed in a talent show. 



CONSUMER PROTECTION

STRUCTURE

To ensure that inherent consumer protection risks are identified, measured, monitored 
and controlled, the Bank adopted Consumer Protection Risk Management System 
particularly on disclosure and transparency, protection of customer information, fair 
treatment, financial education and formulation of consumer assistance management. 
Likewise, this system will ensure the bank’s adherence to consumer protection 
standards, compliance with consumer protection laws, rules, and regulations.

Board of Directors
The board is responsible for developing and maintaining a sound consumer protection 
risk management system (CPRMS) that is integrated into the overall framework for the 
entire product and service life-cycle.  The board and senior management should 
periodically review the effectiveness of the CPRMS, including how findings are reported 
and whether the audit mechanisms in place enable adequate oversight.  The quality and 
timeliness of the information provided to the board and senior management regarding 
the bank's CPRMS are especially important for assessing the program's effectiveness.  
The board and senior management must also ensure that sufficient resources have been 
devoted to the program. The ability to achieve the consumer protection objectives 
depends, in large part, on the authority and independence of the individuals directly 
responsible for implementing the CPRMS and for performing audit/review activities, and 
the support provided by the board and senior management. The board and senior 
management must also make certain that CPRMS weaknesses are addressed and 
corrective actions are taken in a timely manner.

Compliance Program
A well planned, implemented, and maintained consumer protection compliance program 
should prevent or reduce regulatory violations and protect consumers from 
non-compliance and associated harms and loss.  This program lead by compliance office 
was adopted to guide all the staff, officers, management and the board of directors in 
ensuring the bank’s adherence to consumer protection standards, compliance with 
consumer protection laws, rules and regulations.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION

STRUCTURE

Internal Audit Function
Independent of the compliance function, the bank’s audit function should review its 
consumer protection practices, adherence to internal policies and procedures, and 
compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations. The bank’s internal audit of the 
bank business units/functions should include the consumer protection audit program. A 
well-designed and implemented consumer protection audit program ensures that the 
board and audit committee shall be able to make an assessment on the effectiveness of 
implementation as well as adequacy of approved policies and standards in meeting the 
established consumer protection objectives.

Training
Continuing education of personnel about consumer protection laws, rules and 
regulations as well as related bank policies and procedures is essential to maintaining a 
sound consumer protection compliance program. PASB should ensure that all relevant 
personnel specifically those whose roles and responsibilities have customer interface, 
receive specific and comprehensive training that reinforces and helps implement written 
policies and procedures on consumer protection. The bank should institute a consumer 
protection training program that is appropriate to its organization structure and the 
activities it engages. The training program should be able to address changes in 
consumer protection laws, rules and regulations and policies and procedures and should 
be provided in a timely manner.

Policies and Procedures
A. be consistent with consumer protection policies approved by the board;
B. ensure that consumer protection practices are embedded in the bank’s business 

operations;
C. address compliance with consumer protection laws, rules, and regulations; and
D. reviewed periodically and kept-to-date as it serve as reference for employees in 

their day-to-day activities.
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CONSUMER PROTECTION

CONSUMER ASSISTANCE
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (CAMS)

The bank recognizes the major role of customer in achieving its objective of a stable 
banking operation apart from being the reason of its existence as part of the Bank’s goal 
of financial inclusion alleviation. In support also to the initiative of BSP towards bringing a 
strong and stable financial system, it is the policy of the bank to support the protection of 
customer’s rights at all times.

The main objective of the policy is to obtain 100% clients satisfaction on products and 
services of Bank, develop customer care service, and to be more aware of the needs of 
members and become proactive in addressing future demands and concerns.

There is a dedicated department handling consumer protection called “We Care Center” 
lead by a WCC Head with (4) four WCC staff equipped with skills relevant in handling 
customer concerns and complaints.  WCC Head is directly reporting to the President to 
ensure that senior management is up to date with the bank’s CAMS.  

WCC is committed to solve each customer concern within the timeline set in the bank’s 
CAMS.

Customer complaints shall be recorded in the complaint database used to monitor timely 
resolution of complaints and assessment to control increasing number of identical 
complaints.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS

Virginia Dio
President
Filipino, 71 years old

Mrs. Dio has been President of Pacific Ace Savings Bank since 2002. In 1972, she 
founded the first company of Pacific Ace Group, which has since grown to a multinational 
organization implanted in the Philippines, Hong Kong and Macau. She brings close to 40 
years of deep business knowledge and financial expertise, particularly in the industries of 
international remittance and microfinance serving Overseas Filipino Workers. 

She is a long time philanthropist for Philippine educational causes and founded Pacific 
Ace Her Cause Foundation, now  renamed to Pacific Ace Subic Foundation, Inc.

She completed a BS Commerce Major in Accounting at the University of the East.

She has attended seminars in Management, Corporate Planning, Thrift Banking 
Operations, Corporate Governance, AMLA, Customer Service and Emergency 
Preparedness. 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS

Atty. March Jefferson M. Fernandez
Corporate Secretary
Filipino, 36 years old

Atty. Fernandez has been Corporate Secretary of Pacific Ace Savings Bank since 2017. 
He is also a legal counsel of Pacific Ace Group of Companies in the Philippines after over 
3 years experience as a legal associate in a law firm. 

Atty. March completed his Bachelor of Laws at San Beda College of Laws and BS Political 
Science at the University of the Philippines. As part of his ongoing training, he has 
seminars on Corporate Governance and AML Law. 

He is also a stockholder of Pacific Ace Recovery and Collection Inc. and PASB.

Roldan P. Escala 
Acting Treasurer
Filipino, 46 years old

Mr. Escala has been the acting treasurer of Pacific Ace Savings Bank since 2015. He 
holds a concurrent position as manager at Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corporation, a 
subleasing property company located in Subic Bay Freeport Zone, an affiliate of Pacific 
Ace Savings Bank, Inc. 

He is a stockholder in Westdale Philippines, Inc. and Pacific Ace Subic Bay Corp.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS

Monciar P. Elenzano, CPA
Chief Compliance Officer
Filipino, 27 years old

Mr. Elenzano was appointed Chief Compliance Officer in January 2017. He has 2 years 
experience as an internal auditor in a commercial bank and 1 year experience as an 
external auditor. He is an active member of the Association of Bank Compliance Officers 
since 2018.

He completed his BS in Accountancy at Polytechnic University of the Philippines and is a 
Certified Public Accountant since 2014.

He conducts in-house AMLA courses in Pacific Ace Savings Bank and attended seminars 
on Compliance Officer Development, Corporate Governance, AML Law, Train Law, SEC 
Updates among other related training.

Grace S. Lanza
Chief Accountant
Filipino, 31 years old

Ms. Lanza has 9 years experience as Chief Accountant and 1 year as an internal auditor in 
rural and thrift banking. She was appointed as Chief Accountant in PASB since 2017. 

She completed a BS in Accountancy at Mondriaan Aura College. She attended seminars 
in AML Law, SEC Updates, PhilPass, Accounting, IT and Internal Audit. 57



CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS

Mark Robert Brian L. Peralta
Bank Operations Head
Filipino, 24 years old

Mr. Peralta completed his BS in Accountancy in Kolehiyo ng Subic. He joined the bank in 
December 2017 as junior accountant. He was later moved to the asset management 
department before being appointed as bank operations head in 2019.

He has attended AMLA and customer service for banking operations, among other 
related trainings.

Emman Lloyd P. Arcillas
Acting Credit and Loans Head
Filipino, 30 years old

Mr. Arcillas was appointed as Acting Loans Officer and Loan Counselor in 2018. He has 
more than 2 years experience as GL bookkeeping in a rural bank. He finished BS in 
Accountancy at Columban College. He attended seminars in AML Law.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS

Fredie E. Ramos
We Care Center Manager
Filipino, 49 years old

Mr. Ramos is appointed as Head of We Care, the bank’s customer service handling OFW 
concerns and PASB customer complaints and inquiries since 2018. He has 11 years 
experience as a service manager in the food industry.

He completed a BS in Business Administration at Columban College Inc. 

He has attended seminars on Customer Service for Banking Operations and AML Law. 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

Name Nationality

Shares Subscribed

No. of Shares 
Subscribed

 Amount 
Subscribed

%

Virginia S. Dio Filipino 480,000 Ᵽ48,000,000 40.00%

Veronica S. Dio Filipino 360,000 Ᵽ36,000,000 30.00%

Verona Joy S. Dio Filipino 357,738 Ᵽ35,773,800 29.81%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

LIST OF PRODUCTS & SERVICES OFFERED

Deposit Products
A. SAVINGS

Special Savings

1 WOW Savings Account

2 Seaman Dream Savers

Regular Savings

1 Dream Savers Regular

2 Coolkids Savings

3 AGAP Savings

Automatic Transfer Account

1 ASENSO SA (Loan Clients)

ATM Payroll

1 Sikap

B. CHECKING

1 Nation Builder (Corporate)

2 Chequemate (Personal)

3 ASENSO CA (Loan Clients)

C. TIME DEPOSIT

1 Peso Time Deposit

2 FCDU Time Deposit

Loan Products
A. NATION BUILDER (Secured)

1 Agri Loan

2 Micro-Business Loan

3 Housing Loan

4 Consumer Loan

5 Vehicle Loan

6 Small and Medium Loan

B. ASENSO LOAN

1 Agri Loan

2 Micro-Business Loan

3 Housing Loan

4 Consumer Loan

C. SUPER MICRO LOAN

1 AGAP Loan

Electronic Money Product
1 Family Cash Card (OFW Remitter and Beneficiaries)

ATM Service

1
As Acquirer - 2 ATM Terminals in Subic and 
Paranaque

2 As Issuer - almost 30,000 ATMs nationwide
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK   
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

  As at December 31 
 2019 2018

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 7)  ₱    6,140,477  ₱    4,321,079 
Due from BSP (Note 7)       30,261,345       22,161,461 
Due from Other Banks (Note 7)     329,887,310     238,374,215 
Loans & Receivable, Net (Note 9)       80,417,837       51,666,676 
Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost, Net (Note 8)       13,319,449        5,169,458 
Short-term Investments                    -         40,176,631 
Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Net (Note 10)       20,146,285       23,285,860 
Investment Properties, Net (Note 11)        1,403,989        2,469,373 
Right of Use Asset, Net (Note 12)        4,488,881                    -   
Other Assets, Net (Note 13)        5,040,018        5,796,446 

TOTAL ASSETS  ₱ 491,105,591  ₱ 393,421,199 
 

LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  
 

LIABILITIES  

Deposit Liabilities (Note 14)  ₱ 364,473,856  ₱ 285,116,871 
Accrued Interest, Taxes, and Other Expenses Payable (Note 15)           428,027           192,316 
Other Liabilities (Note 16)       39,795,202       26,541,266 
Income Tax Payable (Note 24)           319,199       208,377
TOTAL LIABILITIES     405,016,284     312,058,830 

 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  
Share Capital (Note 17)  
Ordinary Shares       68,117,500       68,117,500 
Retained Earnings - Free       17,971,807 13,244,869
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY       86,089,307       81,362,369 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  ₱ 491,105,591  ₱ 393,421,199 
BOOK VALUE PER SHARE  ₱         126.38  ₱         119.44 
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK   
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

For the Years Ended December 31
 2019 2018

INTEREST INCOME
Loans & Receivables (Note 9)  ₱ 18,414,166  ₱ 11,448,505 
Due from Other Banks (Note 7)     11,785,863       3,952,216 
Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost (Note 8)          841,637         155,394 
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME     31,041,666     15,556,114 

 
INTEREST EXPENSE  
Savings Deposits (Note 14)       2,951,737       2,176,664 
Time Deposits (Note 14)            14,359           20,842 
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE       2,966,096       2,197,506 

 
NET INTEREST INCOME     28,075,570     13,358,608 

 
PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES     10,646,922       2,588,532 

 
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION     17,428,648     10,770,077 

 
OTHER INCOME (Note 18)     18,420,831     19,656,602 

 
TOTAL INCOME BEFORE OPERATING EXPENSES     35,849,479     30,426,679 

 
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE  
Compensation & Benefits (Note 19)     10,981,022       6,266,848 
Other Operating Expenses (Note 21)     11,909,011     11,222,472 
Depreciation & Amortization (Note 22)       4,954,537       3,490,941 
Taxes & Licenses (Note 26)            45,059           37,563 
Impairment Losses                   -           137,206 
TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE     27,889,629     21,155,030 

 
NET INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX       7,959,850       9,271,649 

 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 24)          938,372 1,001,970

 
NET INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX  ₱   7,021,478  ₱  8,269,679 
   
EARNINGS PER SHARE  ₱         10.31  ₱         12.14 
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK    
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

    

 ORDINARY SHARE 
CAPITAL (Note 17)

 RETAINED 
EARNINGS - FREE 

(Note 17)
 TOTAL 

Balance at January 1, 2019  ₱     68,117,500  ₱           13,244,869  ₱ 81,362,369 
Issuance of shares                       -                              -                    -   
Total comprehensive income for the year                       -                   7,021,478       7,021,478 
Provision and adjustment                       -                 (2,294,540)     (2,294,540)
Balance at December 31, 2019  ₱     68,117,500  ₱           17,971,807  ₱ 86,089,307 

Balance at January 1, 2018  ₱     68,117,500  ₱             5,871,441  ₱ 73,988,941 
Issuance of shares                       -                              -                    -   
Total comprehensive income for the year                       -                   8,269,679       8,269,679 
Provision and adjustment                       -                    (896,250)        (896,250)
Balance at December 31, 2018  ₱     68,117,500  ₱           13,244,869  ₱ 81,362,369 
    
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK   
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 For the Years Ended December 31 
 2019 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before tax ₱ 7,959,850 ₱ 9,271,649
Adjustments for:
Provision for Credit Losses on Loans and Receivables (Note 9)           10,646,922         2,588,532 
Gain on Sale of ROPA (Note 18)              (369,714)          (289,605)
Depreciation and amortization (Note 22)             4,954,537         3,490,941 
Impairment Losses                          -            137,206 
Interest Income          (31,041,666)      (15,556,114)
Interest Expense             2,966,096         2,197,506 
Changes in Working Capital:
Loans & Receivables (Note 9)          (39,398,083)      (32,188,103)
Other Assets (Note 13)                756,428          (563,704)
Deposit liabilities (Note 14)           79,356,985     122,155,802 
Accrued interest, taxes & other liabilities (Note 15)                235,710            192,316 
Other liabilities (Note 16)           13,253,937       15,406,631 
Interest Received           31,041,666       15,556,114 
Interest Paid           (2,966,096)       (2,197,506)
Income Tax Paid              (827,550)          (921,858)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES           76,569,022     119,279,806 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale (Purchase) of Short-term Investment           40,176,631      (40,176,631)
Receipts (Payments) on Debt Securities Measured at Amortized 
Cost (Note 8)           (8,149,991)         2,185,454 
Recognition of Right of Use Asset (Note 12)           (5,780,122)                      - 
Proceeds from Investment Properties (Note 11)             1,349,598            669,186 
Purchase of Bank Premises, Furniture, & Equipment (Note 10)              (438,221)      (10,712,670)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES           27,157,895      (48,034,661)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net charges to surplus/Provision and adjustment (SHE)           (2,294,540)          (896,250)
NET CASH  USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES           (2,294,540)          (896,250)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS         101,432,377       70,348,895 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING         264,856,755     194,507,860 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING ₱ 366,289,132 ₱ 264,856,755
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2019 & 2018

1.  GENERAL INFORMATION

PACIFIC ACE SAVINGS BANK was duly registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on 
November 6, 1998 under SEC Registration No. A199816569. The Bank was granted authority by the Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) to engage in and carry on the general business of a savings/thrift and mortgaging e 
bank, to exercise all the rights, attributes, powers, and privileges together with all the assumption of all duties and 
obligations of a savings/thrift mortgage bank as provided for the Thrift Banking Act of 1995 (Republic Act No. 7906) 
and other related laws, and to transact and do all matters and things incidental thereto or which may at any time 
hereafter be usual in connection with the business of a savings or thrift bank.

The Bank is registered with Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA) as a Subic Bay Freeport (SBF) enterprise 
under Republic Act 7227, otherwise known as the bases conversion and development act of 1992. As a SBF 
registered enterprise the Bank is subject to 5% preferential tax rate on gross entitled to the privileges and benefits 
provided for under RA 7227 and its implementing rules and regulations such as not limited to tax and duty free 
importation of raw materials, capital equipment and household and personal items for use and only within SBF 
Zone. The Bank is 99.98% owned by Filipino Citizens.

On October 9, 2017, SBMA issued Certificate of Registration and Tax Exemption with No. 2001-2044, granting the 
Bank the rights, privileges, and benefits of a SBF. The Certificate is automatically renewed under Section 23 of the 
Implementing Rules from the set forth above until October 8, 2018.

The Bank’s Board of Directors (BOD) is composed of Three (3) members and two (2) of them are independent 
directors.

The registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Retail 1, Times Square, Cinema 
Complex, Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Olongapo City.

Approval of Submission
The accompanying financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2019 were authorized for 
issue by its Board of Directors on June 11, 2020.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out separately 
below or explained in the respective notes to these financial statements. These policies have been consistently 
applied to the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI) and derivate financial instruments, if any, that have been measured at fair value. The financial 
statements are presented in Philippine peso (“₱”) and all values are rounded to the nearest peso except when 
otherwise indicated.
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank takes 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 on the degree to 
which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

● Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that 
the entity can access at measurement date. 

● Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

● Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect to previous period. In addition, the Bank 
presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earlier period presented when there 
is retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective restatement, or a reclassification of items in 
the financial statements. An additional statement of financial position at January 1, 2018 is presented in these 
financial statements due to retrospective application of certain accounting policies.

Statement of Compliance
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards (PFRS) and relative laws, regulations and industry practices applicable to rural banks. The term PFRS 
in general includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), Interpretations of the Philippine 
Interpretations Committee (PIC) and Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC)/International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) which have been approved and adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards 
Council (FRSC).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the accounting 
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and 
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

Going Concern Assumption
The Bank is not aware of any significant uncertainties that may cast doubts upon the Bank’s ability to continue as 
a going concern.

3. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those of the 
previous financial years, except that the Bank has adopted the following new accounting pronouncements 
beginning January 1, 2019. Adoption of these pronouncements did not have significant impact on the Bank’s 
financial position or performance unless otherwise stated

New Standards
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●PFRS 16, ‘Leases’
This standard replaces the current guidance in PAS 17 and is a far-reaching change in accounting by lessees in 
particular.

Under PAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease (on balance sheet) and an 
operating lease (off balance sheet). PFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognize a lease liability reflecting future 
lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional 
exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this exemption can only be 
applied by lessees.

For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on the 
definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be 
affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting model for leases is expected to impact 
negotiations between lessors and lessees.

Under PFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The effect of adopting PFRS 16 as of January 1, 2019 follows:

PFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on 
balance sheet. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and financing leases and 
requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually 
all lease contracts. An optional exemption exists for short-term and low-value leases. 

The statement of profit or loss will also be affected because the total expense is typically higher in the earlier 
years of a lease and lower in later years. Additionally, operating expense will be replaced with interest and 
depreciation, so key metrics like Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) will 
change. 

Operating cash flows will be higher as cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability are classified 
within financing activities. Only the part of the payments that reflects interest can continue to be presented as 
operating cash flows. 

The accounting by lessors will not significantly change. Some differences may arise as a result of the new 
guidance on the definition of a lease. Under PFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease of the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

●IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’
This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of PAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied 
where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The PFRS IC had clarified previously that PAS 12, not 
PAS 37 ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’, applies to accounting for uncertain income tax 
treatments. IFRIC 23 explains how to recognize and measure deferred and current income tax assets and 
liabilities where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.

An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether that 
treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. For example, a decision to claim a deduction for a specific 
expense or not to include a specific item of income in a tax return is an uncertain tax treatment if its acceptability 
is uncertain under tax law. IFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax accounting where there is an uncertainty 
regarding the treatment of an item, 
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including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities, tax losses and credits and tax rates.

Amendments

●PFRS 2, ‘Share based payments’, on clarifying how to account for certain types of share-based payment 
transactions (effective 1 January 2018)

●PFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’ regarding the implementation of PFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’
●PAS 28, ’Investments in associates and joint ventures’ regarding measuring an associate or joint venture at fair 

value effective 1 July 2018.
●Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Transfers of Investment Property
●IFRIC 22, ‘Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’
●PFRS 3 and PFRS 11.  The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that 

is a joint operation, it re-measures previously held interests in that business.  The amendments to PFRS 11 
clarify that when an entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not 
re-measure previously held interests in that business.

●PAS 12.  The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (i.e. distribution of profits) 
should be recognized in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax arises.

●PAS 23.  The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is 
ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally 
when calculating the capitalization rate on general borrowings.

Pronouncement issued but not yet effective
The Bank will adopt the following pronouncement when these become effective except as otherwise indicated; 
the Bank does not expect that the future adoption of these pronouncements will have a significant impact on its 
financial statements.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2020
●Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business
●Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2021
●PFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’

This standard replaces PFRS 4, which currently permits a wide variety of practices in accounting for insurance 
contracts. PFRS 17 will fundamentally change the accounting by all entities that issue insurance contracts and 
investment contracts with discretionary participation features.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Financial Instruments 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

69



Financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

Initial Recognition and Measurement – Prior to effective January 1, 2018.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. 

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the 
case of financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as 
fees and commissions. Immediately after recognition, an expected credit allowance (ECL) is recognized for 
financial assets measured at amortized cost. 

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the transaction price on initial recognition, the 
Bank recognizes the difference as follows:

a) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. 
a level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that used only data from observable markets, the difference is 
difference is recognized as a gain or loss. 
b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of recognition of deferred day one profit or loss 
is determined individually.  It is either amortized over the life of the instrument, deferred until the instrument’s fair 
value can be determined using market observable inputs, or realized through settlement.

Financial Assets

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

• Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains or losses (debt instruments)
• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses 
upon de-recognition (equity instruments)
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Bank.  The Bank measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of 
the following conditions are met:

●The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows

●The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and are 
subject to impairment.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized, 
modified or impaired.

The Bank’s investments are under this category.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

70



Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains or losses 

The Bank measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

●The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash 
flows and selling

●The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange re-valuation and impairment 
losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for 
financial assets measured at amortized cost.  The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon 
de-recognition, the cumulative fair value change recognized in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

The Bank has no financial assets under this category.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and    losses upon 
de-recognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Bank can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments 
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:  
Presentation and are not held for trading.  The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss.  Dividends are recognized as 
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the 
Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial assets, in which case, such 
gains are recorded in OCI.  Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to 
impairment assessment.

The Bank has no financial assets under this category.

Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category includes financial assets that are either classified as held for trading or that meets certain 
conditions and are designated by the entity to be carried at fair value through profit or loss upon initial 
recognition. All derivatives fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging 
instruments. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit 
or loss. Financial assets (except derivatives and financial instruments originally designated as financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss) may be reclassified out of FVTPL category if they are no longer held for the 
purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term. Notwithstanding the criteria the debt instruments to be 
classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be 
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, 
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value 
with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the 
host and accounted for as a separate derivative if:

●The economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host
●A separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; 

and
●The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss

Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash 
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit 
or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for separately.  
The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a 
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

The Bank has no financial assets under this category.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair 
value through profit or loss.  ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive, discounted at an 
approximation of the original effective interest rate.  The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the 
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages.  For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are 
possible within the next 12 months.  For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life 
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default.

For trade receivable and contract assets, the Bank applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.  Therefore, 
the Bank does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime of 
ECLs at each reporting date.  The Bank has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Bank considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due.  However, in 
certain cases, the Bank may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information 
indicates that the Bank is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into 
account any credit enhancements held by the Bank.  A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and 
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of 
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impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) 
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to 
the attention of the Bank about certain loss events, including, among others: 

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;
(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 

(iii) it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; 
(iv) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or, 
(v) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a 
group of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be 
identified with the individual financial assets in the Bank.

Considering that the Bank is regulated by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) which requires a distinct 
provisioning as well as default provision pursuant to Circular 855, 941 and 1011, then in case of conflict between 
the standard (PFRS) and special law (which is enacted by BSP such as MORB), then the latter will prevail.

The Bank recognizes impairment loss based on the category of financial assets as follows:

Carried at Amortized Cost – Loans and Receivables and Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost (formerly 
Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets)

For assets carried at amortized cost, the Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists 
individually for financial assets that are individually significant and individually or collectively for financial assets 
that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an 
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the Bank includes the asset in a group of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that 
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are 
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivable or debt securities carried at 
amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have 
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss 
is recognized in profit or loss. If a loan or debt securities has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for 
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. When 
practicable, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable 
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects 
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not 
foreclosure is probable.
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar 
credit risk characteristics (i.e., on the basis of the Bank’s grading process that considers asset type, industry, 
geographical location, collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are 
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability 
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on 
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk 
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current 
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical 
loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist 
currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets should reflect and be consistent with changes in 
related observable data from period to period. The methodologies and assumptions used for estimating future 
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss 
experience.

When a loan is uncollectible subject to BSP guidelines, it may be written off against the related allowance for 
loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures, including approval from the 
management, the BOD and the BSP, have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are presented as part of Other Income in the statement 
of profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s 
credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The 
amount of the reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

When possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve 
extending payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been 
renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continuously reviews restructured loans to 
ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to 
an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loans’ original effective interest rate. The 
difference between the recorded sale of the original loan and the present value of the restructured cash flows, 
discounted at the original effective interest rate, is recognized in profit or loss as part of Impairment Losses.

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets) are 
derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the 
financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party. If the 
Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control 
the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for 
amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a 
transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a 
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower or 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be 
required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is any liability that is:
a.  A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or
b. A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:
i.  A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a favorable number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments; or
ii. A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified as subsequently measured at amortized 
cost, except for:

●Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:this classification is applied to derivatives, financial 
liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking) and other financial liabilities designated as 
such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are 
presented partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability 
that is attributable changes in market conditions that give rise to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the 
remaining amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such presentation would create, or 
enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the credit risk of 
the liability are also presented in profit or loss.

●Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets which did not qualify for derecognition or when the 
continuing involvement approach applies. When the transfer of the financial asset did not qualify for 
derecognition, a financial liability is recognized for the consideration received for the transfer. In subsequent 
period, the Bank recognizes any expense incurred on the financial liability, when continuing involvement 
approach applies, see note 6.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability has expired, or is discharged or has 
cancelled. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet if, and only 
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there's an intention to settle on 
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with 
master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross amount in the balance 
sheet.
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Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, 
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer’s 
net assets. 

The Bank subsequently measures all equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss, except where the 
Bank’s management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. The Bank’s policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when 
those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this election is used, 
fair value gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including 
on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognized in 
profit or loss as other income when the Bank’s right to receive payments is established. 

Gains and losses on equity investments as FVPL are included in the ‘Net trading income’ line in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Financial Assets

This category includes cash and cash equivalents, loans receivable, investments and portion of other assets 
pertaining to rental deposits.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, amounts 
due from BSP and other banks that are highly liquid and readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
original maturities of three months or less from dates of placements and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value.  The components of cash and cash equivalents are shown in the statement of cash flows.  
Cash and cash equivalents are valued at face amount. Cash denominated in foreign currency is translated in 
peso using the closing rate as of the financial date. If a bank or financial institution holding the funds of the Bank 
is in bankruptcy or financial difficulty, cash should be written down to estimated realizable value if the amount 
recoverable is estimated to be lower than the face amount

Cash on Hand
Cash on hand represents the total amount of cash in the bank’s vault in the form of notes and coins under the 
custody of the cashier/cash custodian. This is measured at face value. 

Due from Other Banks 
This represents the balance of the deposit accounts maintained with other resident banks. These are stated in 
the Statement of Financial Position at their face value. Income on interest bearing deposits are credited to and 
included in the determination of income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
This represents the balance of the deposit account in local currency maintained with the Bangko Sentral to meet 
reserve requirement subject to existing rules and regulations. This is measured at face value. 
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Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivable account includes loans extended to clients classified as small and medium enterprise loan, 
real estate loans, other loans, micro finance loans, and agrarian reform and other agricultural loans. Loans and 
receivables are recognized when cash is advanced to borrowers. These are recognized initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the receivable.  These are subsequently measured at amortized 
costs using effective interest method less provision for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate. The amortization is included as “Interest Income” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognized in profit or loss.

Loans & Discounts
Receivables from customers are stated at the outstanding balance reduced by an allowance for probable loan 
losses.

Interest income on non-discounted term loan is accrued monthly as earned, except in the case of non-accruing 
loans.
Unearned discounts are recognized as income over the period for which such discount has been collected using 
the effective interest method. In accordance with the existing BSP regulations no interest income is accrued on 
accounts classified as past due.

Under existing BSP regulations, non-accruing loans are those that have been defined as being past  due and 
items in litigations, or those for which, in the opinion of management, collection of interest or principal  is 
doubtful.  Interest income on these loans is recognized only to the extent of amount collected.  Loans are not 
classified as accruing until interest and/or principal due are collected and the loans are brought to current or are 
restructured in accordance with existing BSP regulations and future payments appear assured. Collaterals of 
restructured loans exceeding ₱1 million shall be revalued by an independent appraiser acceptable to BSP.

Sec. 304 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) states that past due accounts of a bank shall, as a 
general rule, refer to all accounts in its loan portfolio, all receivable components of trading account securities and 
other receivables, which are not paid at contractual due date.

Sec. 304 states that loans, investments, receivables or any financial asset shall be considered non performing 
even without any missed contractual payments, when it is considered impaired under existing accounting 
standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in litigation and/or there is evidence that full repayment of principal and 
interest is unlikely without foreclosure of collateral, if any. All other loans, even if not considered impaired shall be 
considered non-performing if any principal and/or interest are unpaid for more than 90 days from contractual due 
date or accrued interest for more than 90 days have been capitalized, refinanced or delayed by agreement. 
Restructured loans shall be considered performing only, if prior to restructuring, the loans were categorized as 
performing. Non-performing loans and other receivables shall remain classified as such until a) there is sufficient 
evidence to support that full collection of principal and interests is probable and payments of interest and/or 
principal are received for at least 6 months; or b) written off.

The allowance for credit losses is the estimated amount of losses in the Bank’s portfolio, based on evaluation of 
the quality of loans and prior loan loss experience (Appendix 15 of the MORB). Any amount set aside with 
respect to losses on loans and advances in addition to those losses that have been specifically identified or 
potential losses are indicatively present in the portfolio of loans and advances, are accounted for as 
appropriations from retained earnings.  Any credits resulting from the reduction of such amounts result in an 
increase in retained earnings and are not included in the determination of net profit or loss for the period. The 
allowance is increased by provisions 
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charged to expense and reduced by reasonable   write-offs and reversals as determined by the Bank.

The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2019 was tested for impairment. The result of the test is favorable 
since the allowance for probable losses booked by the Bank higher than the requirement of Attachment 3 of BSP 
Circular 1011 (Appendix 15 of MORB), “Guidelines for Adoption of PFRS 9’.

Sales Contract Receivable
Sales Contract Receivable (SCR) shall be recorded based on the present value of the installments receivables 
discounted at the imputed rate of interest. Discount shall be accrued over the life of the SCR by crediting interest 
income using the effective interest method. Any difference between the present value of the SCR and the 
derecognized assets shall be recognized in profit or loss at the date of sale in accordance with the provisions of 
PFRS 15 “Revenue”. Provided, that SCR shall be subject to impairment provisions of PFRS 9.

SCRs that meet all the requirements or conditions enumerated below are considered performing assets
1.That there has been a down payment of at least twenty percent (20%) of the agreed selling price or in the 

absence thereof, the installment payments on the principal had already amounted to at least twenty percent 
(20%) of the agreed selling price;

2.That payment of the principal must be in equal installments or in diminishing amounts and with maximum 
intervals of one (1) year;

3.That any grace period in the payment of principal shall not be more than two (2) years and;
4.That there is no installment payment in arrear either on principal or interest: Provided, That an SCR account shall 

be automatically classified “Substandard” and considered non-performing in case of non-payment of any 
amortization due: Provided, further, That an SCR which has been classified “Substandard” and considered 
non-performing due to non-payment of any amortization due may only be upgraded restored to unclassified 
and/or performing status after a satisfactory track record of at least three (3) consecutive payments of the 
required amortization of principal and/or interest has been established

Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost (formerly Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets)
HTM Financial assets are renamed as ‘Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost’ as required under Annex A 
of BSP Circular 1011. These are financial assets other than those that are designated at fair value through profit 
or loss, which meet both of the following conditions:

●The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

●The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognized and 
measured as described in accordance with PFRS 9 and BSP Circular 1011, as shown in Note 6. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method. 

As at December 31, 2019, the Bank has Debt Securities at Amortized Cost under this category.

Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment’s
The initial cost of premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment except land, comprises its purchase price including 
import duties, borrowing costs (during the construction period), and any directly attributable costs in bringing the 
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. 
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Cost also includes the cost of replacing the part of such asset when the recognition criteria are met and the 
estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site. Land is stated at cost less any 
impairment value.

Expenditures incurred after the premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment have been put into operation, such 
as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to operations in the period the costs are incurred.  In 
situations where it can be clearly determined that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future 
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the asset beyond its originally assessed standard of 
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs.

When major improvement is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the premises, furniture, 
fixtures, and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
For financial reporting purposes, depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The useful lives and depreciation or amortization method are being reviewed by the Bank periodically to ensure 
that the periods and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from the items of premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment.  The residual value, if any, is 
also reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Amortization of 
leasehold improvements is recognized over the estimated useful lives of improvements or the term of the lease, 
whichever is shorter. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment are as follows:

Buildings 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 1-10 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Information Technology Equipment 1 year

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts at ₱ 1 net value until they are no longer in use and no 
further charge for depreciation is made with respect to those assets. When assets are retired or otherwise 
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the account and any resulting gain 
or loss are reflected in the income for the period. Any disposal or deletion of property and equipment from the 
Bank's book of accounts should be approved by the management.

Impairment of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
An assessment is made at the balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired, or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognized for an asset in prior 
years may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If any such indication exists and when the carrying value of 
an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use.  In assessing value in 
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value of money and the risk specific to the 
asset. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating 
unit to which the asset belongs. For impairment loss on specific assets or investments, the recoverable amount 
represents the net selling price.
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An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is charged against operations in the year in which it arises. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in estimate used to determine the recoverable amount of an 
asset, however, not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any 
accumulated depreciation and amortization for premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment) had no impairment 
loss was recognized for the asset in prior years.  A reversal for impairment loss is credited to current operations.

Investment Properties
Initially, investment properties are measured at cost including certain transaction costs. Investment properties 
acquired through a nonmonetary asset exchange is measured initially at fair value unless (a) the exchange lacks 
commercial substance or (b) the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably 
measured. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment in value.

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the investment 
properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or 
loss on the derecognition shall be recorded as gain on sale of investment properties in the Statement of Income 
in the year of disposal.

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operation, such as repairs and 
maintenance costs, are normally charged to income in the period when the costs are incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets of 10 
years or shorter from the date of acquisition.  Land is not depreciated.

However, under Sec.382c of the BSP MORB, land and building classified as Real and Other Properties Acquired 
(ROPA) shall be accounted for as Investment Properties under PAS 40.

Intangible Assets
An intangible asset pertains to acquired information technology software capitalized on the basis of the cost 
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. This asset is stated at historical cost less amortization. 
However, costs for licenses incurred for maintaining the software are charged to operations. Costs that are 
directly attributable to the development phase of new customized software for information technology and 
telecommunications systems are recognized as intangible assets provided they meet the following recognition 
requirements:

●Demonstration of technological feasibility of the prospective product for internal use or sale;
●The intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through internal use or sale;
●Sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for completion; and
●The intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are subject to impairment testing. Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the 
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and install specific software.

Amortization on other computer software is provided on a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 

5 years.
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Other Assets
Other assets account represents residual accounts which were not classified as a separate line item in the 
manual of accounts as provided in Circular 512 as amended by Circular 520 issued by the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Bank assesses at each reporting date if there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank makes an estimate of the 
asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use. When the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
and time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses on continuing operations are 
recognized in the Income Statement in the expense categories.

The assessment is made at each reporting date. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount net of depreciation that would 
have been determined, had no impairment loss have been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal 
is recognized in profit or loss unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated 
as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate 
the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include deposit liabilities, bills payable and other accrued expenses and are recognized when 
the Bank becomes party to the contractual agreement of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially 
recognized at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less settlement payments. The 
following compose the financial liabilities of the Bank.

Deposit Liabilities
The deposit liability account includes savings deposits and term deposits. Savings deposits are interest bearing 
or non-interest bearing and are withdraw-able upon presentation of properly accomplished withdrawal slip and 
passbook. Term deposits refer to interest-bearing deposits with specific maturity dates and evidenced by 
certificate issued by the Bank.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
These refer to obligations already incurred by the Bank which are not yet paid as of the balance sheet date. 
These are normally measured at actual costs.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources and 
they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.  A present 
obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for 
example, legal disputes or onerous contracts.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the 
most reliable evidence available on balance sheet date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the 
present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in 
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the course of settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain, as a separate asset at an 
amount not exceeding the balance of the related provision. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the 
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a 
whole.  In addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values, where time value of money is 
material.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligation is considered 
improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the 
financial statements. Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an 
asset are considered contingent assets, hence not recognized in the financial assets.

Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but they are disclosed in the notes to financial 
statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote. Contingent 
assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an 
outflow of economic benefit is probable.

Revenue Recognition
The Bank primarily derives its revenue from interest income on loans. Revenue from contracts with customers is 
recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Bank 
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine whether it is acting as principal 
or as an agent. The Bank is acting principal in its revenue arrangements to its customers, revenue is recognized 
on a gross basis. However, if the Bank is acting as an agent to its customers, only the amount of net commission 
retained is recognized as revenue.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Bank has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 
the Bank transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made 
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Bank 
performs its obligations under the contract.

Contract liabilities also include payments received by the Bank from the customers for which revenue recognition 
has not yet commenced.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue within the scope of PFRS 15:

Loan Fees and Service Charges
Loan fees directly related to acquisition and origination of loans are included in the cost of receivables and are 
amortized using the effective interest rate method over the term of the loan.  Loan commitment fees are 
recognized as earned over the term of the credit lines granted to each borrower.

Service charges are recognized earned or accrued where there is reasonable degree as to its collectability
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Revenue outside the scope of PFRS 15:

Interest Income

Interest on Loans
Interest Income on loans and discount with advanced interest are recognized periodically using the effective 
interest method of amortization.  On the other hand, interest income on loans and discount with no advanced 
interest are recognized on accrual basis.  The accrual basis of recognition of interest income, however, ceases 
when the loans and discount is already past due.

The Bank shall only charge interest based in the outstanding balance of a loan at the beginning of an interest 
period.  For a loan where the principal is payable in installments, interest per installment period shall be 
calculated based on the outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each installment period.

Interest Income on Bank deposits and Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost
Interest on bank deposits and debt securities at amortized cost are recognized using the accrual method.

Other Income
Other income arising from litigation, service charges, membership fee, rental income and others. Income from 
sale of services is recognized upon rendition of the service. Income from sale of properties is recognized upon 
completion of the earning process and the collectability of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Leases

Lease Recognition – January 1, 2019

Lessee Accounting
Finance Lease - PFRS 16 provides that at the commencement date, a lessee shall recognize a right of use asset 
and a lease liability. This simply means that a lessee is required to initially recognize a right of use asset for the 
right to use the underlying asset over the lease term and a lease liability for the obligation to make payments. All 
leases shall be accounted for by the lessee as finance lease under the new lease standard. 

Initial Measurement of right of use asset
A right of use asset is defined as an asset that represents the right of a lessee to use an underlying asset over 
the lease term in a finance lease. 
The cost of right of use asset comprises:

a.The present value of lease payments
b.Lease payments made to lessor such as lease bonus, less any lease incentive received
c.Initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
d.Estimate of cost of dismantling and restoring the underlying asset for which the lessee has a present obligation. 

Subsequent measurement if right of use asset
The lessee shall measure the right of use asset applying the cost model. To apply the cost model, the lessee 
shall measure the right of use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Presentation of right of use asset
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The bank presented the right of use asset as separate line item as noncurrent asset in the statement of financial 
position. 
(As an alternative, the lessee may include the right of use asset in the appropriate line item within which the 
corresponding underlying asset would be presented if owned.)
Depreciation of right of use asset
The lessee shall apply normal depreciation policy for right of use asset. 

PFRS 16 provides that the lessee shall depreciate the right of use asset over the useful life of the underlying 
asset under the following conditions:

a.The lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
b.The lessee is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option. 

If there is no transfer of ownership to the lessee or if the purchase option is not reasonably certain to exercised, 
the lessee shall depreciate the right of use asset over the shorter between the useful life of the asset and the 
lease term. 

Measurement of Lease Liability
The lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of lease payments. 
The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease desired by the lessor. 
If the implicit interest rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee is used.

Components of lease payments
a.Fixed lease payments or periodic rental.
b.Variable lease payments.
c.Exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the option. 
d.Amount expected to be payable by the lessee under a residual value guarantee. 
e.Termination penalties if the lease term reflects the exercise of a termination option. 

Operating lease model for lessee
PFRS 16 provides that a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election to apply the operating lease 
accounting and not recognize an asset and lease liability in two optional exemptions.

a.Short-term lease
b.Low value lease

Lessor Accounting
PFRS 16 provides that a lessor shall classify leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. 

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership 
of an underlying asset. 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an 
underlying asset. Whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of the 
transaction rather than the form of the contract. 
Under PFRS 16, any of the following situations would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance 
lease:
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a.The lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee at the end of the lease term. 
b.The lessee has an option to purchase the asset at a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair 

value at the date the option becomes exercisable. At the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the 
option will be exercised. 

c.The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the underlying asset even if title is not transferred. 
Under GAAP, a “major part” means at least 75% of the economic life of an asset. 

d.The present value of the lease payments amounts to substantially all of the fair value of the underlying asset at 
the inception of the lease. Under GAAP, “substantially all” means at least 90% of the fair value of the underlying 
asset.

Lease Recognition – Prior to January 1, 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee.  All other lease are classified as operating leases.
i. Operating Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the inception date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A re-assessment is made after the 
inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially 
included in the lease term;
c. There is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment is dependent on specified asset; or
d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where re-assessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in 
circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment for scenarios a, c or d and at the date of renewal or extension 
period for scenario b. 

●The Bank as a Lessor. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
asset are classified as operating leases.  Lease income from operating leases is recognized as income in the 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

●The Bank as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of 
the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets 
are consumed.  Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a 
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line 
basis, except where there another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The estimated useful life of Right of Use Asset is as follow:

Building 3-5 years
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Employee Benefits
a. Short term benefits
The Bank provides short term benefits to its employees in the form of salaries and wages, 13th month pay, 
contributions to SSS/PHIC/HDMF and other short term employee benefits and are presented  as part of the 
operating expenses as compensation and fringe benefits -employees.

b. Retirement Benefits
Republic Act (RA) No. 7641 (New Retirement Law) which took effect on January 7, 1993 requires the Bank to 
provide minimum retirement benefit to qualified retiring employees. Minimum retirement benefit is equivalent to at 
least one half month salary for every year of service. An employee upon reaching sixty years of age and who has 
served at least five years may retire and be entitled to retirement benefits. The compulsory retirement age is sixty 
five (65) years of age.

c. Retirement Cost
The Bank has a non-contributory define benefit retirement plan. The retirement cost of the Bank is determined 
using the projected unit cost method. Under this method, the current service cost is the present value of 
retirement obligation in the future with respect to services rendered in the current year.

Income Taxes
Current tax
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided, using the statement of financial position liability method, on all temporary differences at 
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with exceptions. Deferred tax assets 
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits from excess minimum 
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover 
(NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused excess MCIT over RCIT and unused NOLCO can 
be utilized.

Deferred tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
income nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes relates to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority.
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Current income tax and deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in OCI, 
and not in profit or loss.

Equity

Share Capital
Share Capital is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the Bank issues more than 
one class of stock, a separate account is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares issued. 
Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as deduction 
from proceeds, net of tax. The subscribed capital stock is reported in equity less the related subscription 
receivable not currently collectible. Capital stock consists of common and preferred. Preferred stocks are (a) 
cumulative, (b) non-voting, and (c) non-redeemable.

Subscribed common stock is recognized at subscribed amount net of subscription receivable.
Subscriptions receivable pertains to uncollected portion of subscribed stocks. The Bank accounted for the 
subscription receivable as a contra equity account.

Retained Earning
Retained earnings represents the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend contributions, prior 
period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.

Dividends
Cash dividends are recognized as liability and deducted from the equity when approved by the Board of 
Directors (BOD) while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by BOD and stockholders. 
Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are dealt with as subsequent events. Stock 
issuance costs are accounted for as deduction from equity.

Earnings per Share
Earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments applicable, if any, to preference shares.

Book Value per Share
The book value per common share is derived from the total stockholders' equity net of preferred shares and 
dividends (for cumulative shares) divided by the total number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also 
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties 
may be individuals or corporate entities. Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar to 
those offered to non-related parties.

Events after Reporting Date
Post-year-end events up to the date of approval of the BOD of the financial statements that provide additional 
information about the Bank’s position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial 
statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the notes when material 
to the financial statements.
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Philippine Auditing Practice Note No. 001 Series of 2020 - Audit Consideration on the Occurrence of an 
Extraordinary Event

In lieu of the occurrence of an extraordinary event, which is the Novel Corona Virus Disease 2019 audit 
engagement teams may face challenges in conducting the audit of the annual financial statements ( AFS). Audit 
Teams could face significant challenges completing their audits due to the following circumstances, including but 
not limited to:

a.Barriers to obtaining the information needed to perform procedures and reach conclusions
b.Difficulties accessing client premises to perform procedures
c. Audit procedures not providing the anticipated audit evidence, requiring modifications to the audit approach
d. A need to respond to risk of immaterial misstatement arising from limitations on information and/or 

management having less time that usual to prepare the financial information
e. A need to perform additional work to respond to risks of immaterial misstatement arising from the potential 

financial effects of the outbreak
f. Impediments to completing the audit as a result of the engagement team having to work remotely.

Due to these challenges it has cause significant delays in the completion of our audit and may also impact the 
ability of the auditors to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence.

In line with this, alternative ways to acquire our needed documents and information for the required disclosure to 
complete the said financial statements were applied (such as audit evidence in scanned documentary form sent 
thru electronic mail).

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the management to make 
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and 
disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities, if any. Future events may occur which will cause the 
judgments used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the 
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart 
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
financial statements:

a. Classification of financial instruments

The Bank exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as 
either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The 
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of 
financial position.
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b.    Determination of Functional currency
PAS 21, the effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates requires management to use its judgment to 
determine the entity’s functional currency such that it most faithfully represents the economic effects of the 
underlying transactions, events and conditions that are relevant to the entity. In making this judgment, the Bank 
considers the following:

b.1. The currency that mainly influences sales prices for financial instruments and services (this will often be the 
currency in which sales prices for its financial instruments and services are denominated and settled);
b.2. The currency in which funds from financing activities are generated; and
b.3. The currency in which receipts from operating activities are usually retained.

Estimates
In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, apart 
from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the 
financial statements:

a Allowance for Probable Losses
The allowance for probable loan losses, which includes both specific and general loan loss reserve represents 
management's estimate of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, after considering the prevailing and 
anticipated economic conditions, prior loss experience, estimated recoverable value based on fair market values 
of underlying collaterals and prospect of support from guarantors, subsequent collections and evaluations made 
by the BSP.  The BSP observes certain criteria and guidelines in establishing specific loan loss reserves for 
classified loans and other risk assets a provided under Sec. 143 and Appendix 15 of the Manual of Regulations 
for Banks.

Individually assessed loans and other credit accommodations (which include other credits such as accounts 
receivables, sales contract receivables, accrued interest receivables and advances):

Loans and other credit accommodation with unpaid principal and/or interest is being classified and provided with 
allowance for credit losses (ACL) based on the number of days missed payments as follows:

Number of days Unpaid/with missed 
payments Classification

Minimum 
ACL Stage

31 - 90 days Substandard (Underperforming) 10% 2
91 - 120 days Substandard (Non Performing) 25% 3

121 - 180- days Doubtful 50% 3
180 days and over Loss 100% 3

For unsecured loans and credit accommodations:

Number of days Unpaid/with missed 
payments Classification Minimum 

ACL Stage

31 - 90 days* Substandard (Underperforming) 10% 2
91 - 180 days Substandard (Non-Performing) 10% 3

181 - 365- days Substandard (Non-Performing) 25% 3
Over 1 year – 5 years Doubtful 50% 3

Over 5 years Loss 100% 3

*When there is imminent possibility of foreclosure and expectation of loss, ACL shall be increased to 25%

For secured loans and other credit accommodations:
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Provided that where the quality of physical collateral or financial guarantees securing the loans and advances 
are determined to be insufficient, weak or without recoverable values, such loans and advances are treated 
as if unsecured.

Loans and other credit accommodations that exhibit the characteristics for classified account is being 
provided with allowance for credit losses as follows: Classified Loans

Classification Minimum ACL Stage
Especially Mentioned 5% 2

Substandard – Secured 10% 2 or 3*
Substandard – Unsecured 25% 2 or 3*

Doubtful 50% 3
Loss 100% 3

*The stage depends on whether the accounts are classified as non-performing (Stage 3) or underperforming 
(Stage 2).

Unsecured loans and other credit accommodations classified as "substandard" in the last two (2) internal 
credit reviews which have been continuously renewed or extended without reduction in principal and is not in 
process of collection, is downgraded to "doubtful" classification and provided with 50% allowance for credit 
losses.

Loans and other credit accommodations under litigation which have been classified as "pass" prior to litigation 
process is classified as 'substandard" and provided with 25% ACL.

Loans and other credit accommodations that were previously classified as "pass" but were subsequently 
restructured shall have a minimum classification of "especially mentioned" and provided with a 5% ACL, 
except for loans which are considered non-risk under existing laws, rules and regulations.

Classified loans and other credit accommodations that were subsequently restructured shall retain their 
classification and provisioning until the borrower has sufficiently exhibited that the loan will be repaid.

Collectively Assessed Loans and Other Credit Accommodations which includes microfinance loans, micro 
enterprises and small business loans and consumer loans such as salary loans, credit card receivables, auto 
loans, housing loans and other consumption loans, and other types of loan which fall below the Bank's 
materiality threshold for individual assessment:

Current "pass" loans and other credit accommodations is provided with ACL based on the number of days of 
missed payments as follows:

For unsecured loans and other credit accommodations:

Number of days Unpaid/with missed 
payments Classification Minimum 

ACL Stage

1-30 days Especially Mentioned 2% 2
31-60 days/1st restructuring Substandard 25% 2 or 3

61-90 days Doubtful 50% 3
91 days and over/ 2nd restructuring  Loss 100% 3
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For secured loans and other credit accommodations:

No. of Days 
Unpaid/With Missed 

Payments

Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL)

STAGEClassification Other types of 
collateral

Secured by real 
estate

31 - 90 days Substandard (Underperforming) 10% 10% 2
91 - 120 days Substandard (Non-performing) 25% 15% 3

121 - 360 days Doubtful 50% 25% 3
361 days - 5 years Loss 100% 50% 3

Over 5 years Loss 100% 100% 3

Provided, that where the quality of physical collaterals or financial guarantees securing the loans and advances 
are determined to be insufficient, weak or without recoverable values, such loans and advances is treated as if 
these are unsecured. Unclassified loans and receivables-General loan loss provision

For unclassified loans:
Unclassified restructured loans 5% of the borrower's outstanding loan
Unclassified other than restructured 1% of the borrower's outstanding loan

Outstanding loans that were already subjected to specific provisioning were no longer included in the general 
loan loss provisioning as shown above.

Other Risk Assets

Other risk assets such as accounts receivable are also given allowance after considering the nature of the 
transaction and the degree of collectibles of the accounts.

Provisions for losses (expense account) on the above cited risk assets are determined by the required allowance 
at the end of the year less the beginning allowance for a particular year adjusted by write-off and recovery, if any.

b. Useful lives of Premises, Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment
The estimated useful lives of the Bank’s premises, furniture, fixtures, and equipment are based on the period over 
which the assets are expected to be available for use, and on the collective assessment of the industry practice, 
internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimates are reviewed periodically and 
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial 
obsolescence and legal or other limits in the use of the premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment. A reduction in 
the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment would increase the expenses and decrease the 
non-current assets Depreciation is computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the 
assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using straight line 
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method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the term of the lease contract whichever comes shorter.

c. Useful life of Depreciable Investment Property
The assumptions and estimates used by the Bank in the useful life of Investment Property are made to 
objectively determine the productivity or use of the assets. The BSP however in its Circular 494 provided that 
Investment Property -building  and Investment Property -Other Non-Financial Assets specifically those that were 
accounted for as Investment Property under  PAS 40 shall be depreciated only for a period of not more than 10 
and 3 years respectively reckoning from the date of foreclosure. Thus, the lower between the estimate of the 
Bank and BSP regulation shall prevail.

d. Residual Value of Depreciable Assets
The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that an entity would obtain from the disposal of the asset, 
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal. The management's estimate on the residual values of its assets 
is based on a conservative approach where residual values assigned to each asset are nil.

e. Estimate Used in Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets
Reasonable estimate of the management on the fair value of the financial instrument is the responsibility of the 
management when reference costs and/or values is not quoted in the stock market.

An entity shall asses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial asset is impaired. The threshold and materiality level in PAS 36 and 39 to impair a financial 
asset is provided on a non-quantitative basis thus, the use of judgments in objectively examining the financial 
asset is required. In such case, the top management of the Bank shall be responsible for the reasonable 
judgment pertaining to the valuation of this financial instrument.

f. Contingencies
The adoption of accounting for contingencies in the PAS 37 requires management's prudent judgment and 
expectation on the outcome of particular contingencies. The relevance of this item becomes paramount 
significant when it will materially affect the financial standing of the Bank.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Bank's principal financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables which 
arise from operations, and long term investments. The Bank's activities are principally related to the profitable use 
of financial instruments. Risks are inherent in these activities but are managed by the Bank through a rigorous, 
comprehensive and continuous process of identification measurement, monitoring and mitigation of these risks, 
partly through the effective use of risk and authority limits, process controls and monitoring, and independent 
controls. The Bank has placed due importance to expanding and strengthening its risk management process and 
considers it as a vital component to the Bank's continuing profitability and financial stability. Central to the Bank's 
risk management process is its adoption of a risk management program intended to avoid unnecessary risks, 
manage and mitigate unavoidable risks and maximize returns from taking acceptable risks necessary to sustain 
its business validity and good financial position in the market.

The inherent risks which can arise from the Bank’s financial instruments are credit risk, market risk (i. e. interest 
rate risk, currency risk and price risk) and liquidity risk. The Bank's risk management objective is primarily 
focused on controlling and mitigating these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees on policies for 
managing each of these risks and are summarized as follows:
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Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to the other party's failure to discharge an obligation cited in a binding 
financial instrument. The Bank faces potential credit risks every time it extends funds to borrowers, commits 
funds to counterparties, guarantees the paying performance of its clients, invests funds to issuers and enters into 
either  market-traded or over-the-counter derivatives, through implied or actual contractual agreements. The Bank 
manages the level of credit risks it accepts through comprehensive credit risk policy setting assessment and 
determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Bank; setting up exposure limits by each counterparty or 
group of counterparties, geographical and industry segments; guidelines on obtaining collateral guarantees; 
reporting of credit risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; monitoring compliance with credit risk 
policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and changing environment.

Additionally, the tables below show the distribution of maximum credit exposure by industry sector of the Bank as 
at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

 2019

 Loans and 
Receivables

 Due from BSP 
and Other Banks 

Debt 
Securities 

Measured at 
Amortized 

Cost

 Total 

Wholesale and retail trade, 
repair of motor vehicles, 
motorcycles          19,944,070              19,944,070 
Agriculture, forestry and 
fishing          17,849,198              17,849,198 
Financial institutions           327,532,016           327,532,016 
Government             32,616,639        13,319,449            45,936,088 
Construction          16,226,641              16,226,641 
Manufacturing                   5,066                       5,066 
Household Consumption          10,307,010              10,307,010 
Real estate activities          27,029,509              27,029,509 
Total          91,361,494          360,148,655        13,319,449          464,829,598 
     
 2018

 

Loans and 
Receivables

 Due from BSP 
and Other Banks 

Debt Securities 
Measured at 

Amortized Cost 
 Total 

Wholesale and retail trade, repair 
of motor vehicles, motorcycles          14,131,562              14,131,562 
Agriculture, forestry and fishing          19,819,514              19,819,514 
Financial institutions           236,235,787           236,235,787 
Government             24,299,888          5,169,458            29,469,346 
Real estate activities          15,716,683              15,716,683 
Other service activities            4,347,402                4,347,402 
Total          54,015,161          260,535,675          5,169,458          319,720,294
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Credit quality per class of financial assets

The tables below show the credit quality per class of financial assets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

 2019

 High grade Standard 
grade

Past due 
but not 

impaired

 
Impaired Total

Due from BSP        30,261,345          30,261,345 
Due from other 
banks      329,887,310         329,887,310 
Loans Receivable        64,098,602    5,763,861    21,499,031        91,361,494 
Other receivables:      
  Accounts 
receivable         5,547,327            5,547,327 
  Accrued Interest 
Receivable         1,882,487            1,882,487 
Debt Securities 
Measured at 
Amortized Cost        13,319,449          13,319,449 
      444,996,520    5,763,861    21,499,031       -        472,259,412 
      
 2018

 High grade Standard 
grade

Past due but 
not impaired  Impaired Total

Due from BSP             22,161,461               22,161,461 
Due from other banks           238,374,215             238,374,215 
Loans Receivable             44,996,097    9,019,064              54,015,161 
Other receivables:                               -   
  Accounts receivable         6,917,898                 6,917,898 
Debt Securities 
Measured at 
Amortized Cost               5,169,458                 5,169,458 
Short-Term Investment             40,176,631               40,176,631 
           357,795,760        9,019,064                       -            -            326,638,193

Amount is net of Unamortized Discount as at December 31, 2019.

Aging analysis of past due but not impaired loans and receivables
The following tables show the total aggregate amount of loans and receivables that are contractually past due but 
not considered impaired per delinquency bucket as at December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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 2019

 Less than 
30 Days

31 to 90 
Days

91 to 180 
Days

181 days to 
more than 

1 year
Total

Receivable from customers:     
Loans receivable    1,924,399     3,839,462    14,522,971     6,976,060     27,262,892 
    1,924,399     3,839,462    14,522,971     6,976,060     27,262,892

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss that may result from the changes in price of a financial product. The value of a 
financial product may change as a result of changes in interest rates (currency risk) and market prices (price 
risk). Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates, Currency risk on the other hand is the risk that the value of instrument will fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its 
issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

Interest rate risk
The Bank’s loan receivables earn effective interest rates ranging from 15.00% to 30.00% for 2019 and 2018. The 
shortest term of loan is one (1) month while the longest term is ten (10) years.

The Bank’s savings deposit liabilities include compulsory and voluntary savings that earn from 0.30% to 1.50% 
per annum in 2019 and 2018. Time deposits have interest rates of 1.50% to 3.50% in 2019 and 2018.

Moreover, the Bank’s savings deposits on due from other banks earn interest rates of 0.25% in 2019 and 2018. In 
order to manage its net interest margin, the Bank places its excess funds in high yield investments and other 
short-term time deposits with interest rates ranging from 4.125% to 6.28% in 2019 and 2018.

Fair Value Interest Rate Risk
Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes 
in interest rates. The Bank's cash equivalents are mostly invested in fixed interest rates on its duration and 
therefore exposed to fair value interest rate risk but not to cash flow interest rate risk.

Loan receivables and interest bearing liabilities are sized as to interest rate and maturity to make a reasonable 
analysis of the degree of risk associated with lending and borrowings.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. In the case of a floating rate debt instrument, fluctuation results in a change in effective interest 
rate of a financial instrument usually without a corresponding change in its fair value.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is generally defined as the current and prospective risk to earnings or capital arising from the Bank’s 
inability to meet its obligations when they come due without incurring unacceptable losses or costs. It may result 
from either inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment of 
contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.
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The Bank monitors its cash flow position and overall liquidity position in assessing its exposure to liquidity risk. 
The Bank maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance operations and to mitigate the effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows and a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short-term 
debt and advances from related parties and an arrangement for a stand-by credit line facilities with any reputable 
bank and in case of emergency. Interest rate and maturity matching analysis is used to quantify monitoring of 
liquidity position.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile based on contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Bank’s 
financial liabilities and related financial assets used for liquidity purposes:

 2019

 On demand Due within 
1 month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 12 
months

Beyond 1 
year  Total

Financial Liabilities
Deposit liabilities  126,137,567 180,399,083 11,113,986 46,799,757 364,450,393 
Other Liabilities:       
  Accrued expenses  428,027    428,027 
  Accounts payable                      -   1,041,645 128,717 625,651 33,210,576 35,006,589 
Total Financial 
Liabilities                      -   127,607,239 180,527,800 11,739,637 80,010,333 399,885,009 
Financial Assets      
Cash and other cash 
items 6,140,477     6,140,477 
Due from BSP 30,261,345     30,261,345 
Due from other banks 329,887,310     329,887,310 
Loans and receivable*  8,831,429 1,557,933 13,009,832 57,652,875 81,052,070 
Accounts receivable 5,547,327     5,547,327 
Accrued Interest 
Receivable 1,882,487     1,882,487 
Debt Securities 
Measured at Amortized 
Cost    1,209,725 12,109,725 13,319,449 
Total Financial Assets 373,718,946 8,831,429 1,557,933 14,219,557 69,762,600 468,090,465 
Liquidity Position (Gap)  (373,718,946) 118,775,810 178,969,867  (2,479,920) 10,247,733  (68,205,456)

 2018

 On demand Due within 1 
month 1 to 3 months 3 to 12 

months Beyond 1 year Total

Financial Liabilities       
Deposit liabilities 284,260,483 -   780,496 75,893  285,116,871 
Other Liabilities:       
  Accrued other 
expense  

           
190,244  

              
2,073  

             
192,317 

  Accounts payable  521,087 237,900 269,914 302,194 1,331,095 
Total Financial 
Liabilities 

       
284,260,483 

           
711,331 

         
1,018,396 

          
347,880 

            
302,194 

       
286,640,283 

Financial Assets       
Cash and other 
cash items 

          
4,359,673     

          
4,359,673 

Due from BSP 22,161,461     22,161,461 
Due from other 
banks 32,956,429 201,341,078 5,019,250   239,316,757 
Loans and 
receivable*  

        
2,746,007 

         
1,480,241 

      
15,777,702 

       
31,662,726 

         
51,666,676 

Accounts receivable  740,160 29,999 1,714,897 4,432,842 6,917,898 
Debt Securities 
Measured at 
Amortized Cost  

      
39,999,859    

         
39,999,859 

Total Financial 
Assets 

        
59,477,563 

     
244,827,104 

         
6,529,490 

      
17,492,599 

       
36,095,568 

       
364,422,324 

Liquidity Position 
(Gap)

       
224,782,920 

    
(244,115,773)

        
(5,511,094)

     
(17,144,719)

      
(35,793,374)

        
(77,782,041)
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Operational Risks
Operational risk is the risk of direct and indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the 
Bank's involvement in financial instruments, personnel, technology and infrastructure and external factors other 
than market and liquidity risk such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally 
accepted standards of corporate behavior. The Bank's objective is to manage operational risks so as to balance 
the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid 
control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR)
Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR) for Stand-Alone TBs, RBs and Coop Banks. To promote short-term resilience to 
liquidity shocks, banks shall maintain a stock of liquid assets proportionate to their on- and off-balance sheet 
liabilities. The prudential MLR requirement applies to all TBs, RBs and Coop Banks and QBs that are not 
subsidiaries of UBs/KBs. 

A prudential MLR Minimum requirement of twenty percent (20%) shall apply to banks on an ongoing basis absent 
a period of financial stress. The liquidity ratio is expressed as a percentage of a bank’s eligible stock of liquid 
assets to its total qualifying liabilities in accordance with MORB Section 145.

Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR) as of December 31, 2019

PART 1. MINIMUM LIQUIDITY RATIO (MLR)
A. Stock of Liquid Assets  ₱ 379,608,581
B. Qualifying Liabilities 297,294,043
Minimum Liquidity Ratio 127.69%

PART II. STOCK OF LIQUID ASSETS
Cash on Hand 6,140,477
Bank Reserves in the BSP 30,261,345
Debt Securities representing claims on or guaranteed by the Philippine National 
Government and the BSP 13,319,449
Deposits in Other Banks 329,887,310
 Total  ₱379,608,581

PART III. QUALIFYING LIABILITIES
A. Qualifying Liabilities
1 Retail current and regular savings deposits with outstanding balance per account of 
₱500,000 and below (₱215,444,482 * 50%) 107,722,241
2. Obligations arising from operational expenses - 
3. Total on Balance Sheet Liabilities 405,016,284
4. Deduct: Sum of A1 to A2 215,444,482

B. Other on-balance sheet liabilities ( Item A.3 less A.4) 189,571,802
C. Irrevocable obligations under off-balance sheet items -
D. Total (Sum of Adjusted Amount of Item A(1), A(2), B and C)  ₱ 297,294,043
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 2019 2018
7.1. Cash and Other Cash items
Cash on Hand and in Vault ₱ 3,511,221  ₱ 1,512,175
Cash and Other Cash Items 2,629,256 2,808,904
Total cash and other cash items 6,140,477 4,321,079
.2. Due from BSP and other Banks
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 30,261,345 22,161,461
Due from Other Banks 329,887,310 238,374,215
Total due from BSP and other banks 360,148,655 260,535,676

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent ₱ 366,289,132 ₱ 264,856,755

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statements of cash flows can be 
reconciled to the related items in the statements of financial position as follows:

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philippine currency notes and coins in the Bank’s vault and those in 
the possession of tellers. Checks and other cash items include cash items (other than currency and coins on hand) 
such as checks drawn on the other banks or other branches after the Bank’s clearing cut-off time until the close of 
the regular banking hours. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Due from other banks generally earns interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Total interest income earned 
amounted to ₱11,785,863 and ₱3,952,216 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Deposit 
with the BSP is non-interest bearing.

The balance of Due from BSP account serves as the Bank's reserve for its deposit liabilities. Under the Manual of 
Regulations for Banks, a Bank is required to maintain its reserve requirements for its deposit liabilities in the form of 
deposits with the BSP Section 252 of MORB further provides that such deposit account with the BSP is not 
considered as a regular current account.  Drawings against such deposits shall be limited to: (a) settlement of 
obligations with the BSP; and, (b) withdrawals to meet cash requirements.

The Due from Other Banks account represents deposits with other local banks which are being used for its daily 
operations. Breakdown of this account follows:

Name of Banks 2019  % 2018  % 
Banco De Oro  ₱         83,851,723 25.42%  ₱     55,255,311 23.18%
China Banking Corporation             44,321,767 13.44%         70,495,649 29.57%
United Coconut Planters Bank                    40,435 0.01%               40,453 0.02%
Union Bank of the Philippines                  446,097 0.14%              116,712 0.05%
Sterling Bank             99,877,138 30.28%       100,317,658 42.08%
Land Bank of the Philippines               2,355,294 0.71%           2,138,427 0.90%
Philippine National Bank             98,994,855 30.01%         10,010,004 4.20%
Total  ₱       329,887,310 100.00%  ₱   238,374,214 100.00%
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Under Sec.362g of the Manual of Regulations for Banks, loans and other credit accommodations as well as 
deposits and usual guarantees by a bank to any other bank whether locally or abroad shall be subject to the Single 
Borrower's Limit of 25% of the Net worth as herein prescribed or ₱100 Million whichever is higher. Provided that the 
lending bank shall exercise proper due diligence in selecting a depository bank and shall formulate appropriate 
policies to address the corresponding risks involved in the transactions.

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank's SBL was registered at ₱21,522,327 and as per BSP Manual of Regulations, 
bank are exempted on the ceiling of single borrower's limit (SBL) on deposit/investment placements to government 
banks, however excess of SBL on private banks are being considered if the accounts are used for clearing 
operation.

As of December 31, 2019, none of the Banks has exceeded the prescribed limit or ₱ 100 million under Circular No. 
734 Series of 2011.

8. DEBT SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

This account consists of:
2019 2018

Book Value ₱13,174,282 ₱4,931,291
Add: Accumulated Bond Discount 145,167 238,167
Total  ₱13,319,449  ₱5,169,458

The above LBP Bonds representagrarian reform bonds amounting to ₱13,174,282 with unamortized 
discount/premium of ₱145,167as additional compliance under, BSP MORB Section 331.

Debt Securities Measured at Amortized Cost earned interest income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 
2018 amounted to ₱841,637 and ₱155,394, respectively.

9. LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

The loan receivables are stated at outstanding balances, net of estimated allowance for credit losses and unearned 
income/discounts, broken down as follows:

2019 % 2018 %
Current Loans  ₱  71,598,625 78.37%  ₱ 44,996,097 83.30%
Past Due Loans      19,762,869 21.63%       9,019,064 16.70%
Total      91,361,494 100.00%     54,015,161 100.00%
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses

Specific      10,309,421       1,684,382 
General           634,236         664,103 

Total Loans and Receivables-net  ₱  80,417,837   ₱ 51,666,676  

The total Allowance for Credit Losses of ₱10,943,657 which composed of general and specific loan loss provisions 
as stated above is in compliance with the BSP Manual of Regulations (Sec. 143 Appendix 15) or Circular No. 1011.

Movements in the allowance for credit losses related to loans and receivables follow:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

99



Classification of outstanding loans (Net of Unamortized Discounts):

2019 2018 
Balance at beginning of year ₱   2,348,485  ₱       934,156
Provision (IS) 8,595,172 1,414,329
Balance at end year ₱ 10,943,657  ₱ 2,348,485

As to Maturity:     
 2019  % 2018  % 
Due within one (1) year  ₱   19,763,037 21.63%  ₱46,379,004 85.86%
Due beyond one (1) year       71,598,457 78.37%      7,636,157 14.14%
Total Loan Portfolio  ₱   91,361,494 100.00%  ₱54,015,161 100.00%
     
As to Status:     
 2019  % 2018  % 
Current Loans  ₱   64,098,602 70.16%  ₱44,996,097 83.30%
Past Due - Performing         5,763,861 6.31%      9,019,064 16.70%
Past Due - Non - Performing       21,499,031 23.53%                 -   0.00%
Items in Litigation                    -   0.00%                 -   0.00%
Total Loan Portfolio  ₱   91,361,494 100.00%  ₱54,015,161 100.00%
     
As to Type of Security:     
 2019  % 2018 %
Real Estate Mortgage  ₱   70,482,639 77.15%  ₱27,538,019 50.98%
Other Collateral         54,008.00 0.06%                 -   0.00%
Unsecured       20,824,847 22.79%    26,477,142 49.02%
Total Loan Portfolio  ₱   91,361,494 100.00%  ₱54,015,161 100.00%
     
As to Concentration of Credits to Certain Industry/Economic Sector:   
     
 2019 % 2018  % 
Wholesale  ₱   19,944,070 21.83%  ₱14,131,562 26.16%
Agriculture       17,849,198 19.54%    19,819,514 36.69%
Manufacturing               5,066 0.01%   
Construction       16,226,641 17.76%                 -   0.00%
Household Consumption       10,307,010 11.28%                 -   0.00%
Real Estate Activities       27,029,509 29.59%    15,716,683 29.10%
Other service activities                    -   0.00%      4,347,402 8.05%
Total  ₱   91,361,494 100.00%  ₱54,015,161 100.00%
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The BSP considers that loan concentration exists when total loan exposure to a particular economic sector exceeds 
30% of the total loan portfolio except for the real estate loans. As of December 31, 2019, no credit concentration 
exists in the portfolio of the Bank.

The past due loan ratio as of 2019 is 29.84% which is higher by 13.14% as compared to last year's ratio of 16.70%.

Interest income for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to ₱18,414,166 and ₱11,448,505, 
respectively.

10. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

This account consists of:

 
Constructio

n in 
Progress

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportatio
n Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

December 31, 2019

Cost  ₱              -   
 ₱      
16,820,098 

 ₱    
1,972,929  ₱   1,166,617 

 ₱    
2,596,329 

 ₱      
38,600,173 

Accumulated 
Depreciation                  -   

           
6,450,322 

       
1,141,640          186,978 

        
1,161,438 

         
32,069,483 

Net carrying amount  ₱              -   
 ₱      
10,369,776 

 ₱       
831,288  ₱     979,640 

 ₱    
1,434,891 

 ₱       
6,530,690 

December 31, 2018

Cost
 ₱      
998,461 

 ₱      
15,658,637 

 ₱    
1,960,371  ₱   1,130,917 

 ₱    
2,537,840 

 ₱      
38,431,699 

Accumulated 
Depreciation                  -   

           
5,221,071 

          
887,994           61,981 

          
934,384 

         
30,326,634 

Net carrying amount
 ₱      
998,461 

 ₱      
10,437,566 

 ₱    
1,072,377  ₱   1,068,936 

 ₱    
1,603,456 

 ₱       
8,105,065 

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment at the beginning and 
end of 2019 and 2018 is shown below: 2019

 Construction 
in Progress

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

Total

Cost
Balance at 

beginning of year
 ₱      

998,461 
 ₱      

15,658,637 
 ₱    

1,960,371  ₱   1,130,917 
 ₱    

2,537,840 
 ₱      

38,431,699 
 ₱     

60,717,925 

Additions 
       

(998,461)
           

1,161,461 
            

12,558 
            

58,489 
             

168,474 
             

402,521 
Disposals                       -   

Reclassification                       -   
Balance at end of 

year 
 ₱                 

-   
 ₱      

16,820,098 
 ₱    

1,972,929  ₱   1,166,617 
 ₱    

2,596,329 
 ₱      

38,600,173 
 ₱     

61,156,146 

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Balance at 
beginning of year 

 ₱        
5,221,071 

 ₱       
887,994  ₱       61,981 

 ₱       
934,384 

 ₱      
30,326,634 

 ₱     
37,432,064 

Depreciation and 
amortization 

           
1,229,251 

          
252,217          124,997 

          
227,055 

           
1,744,277 

          
3,577,797 

Reclassification
             

1,429 
                

(1,429)
                       

0 
Balance at end of 

year  ₱              -   
 ₱        

6,450,322 
 ₱    

1,141,640  ₱     186,978 
 ₱    

1,161,438 
 ₱      

32,069,483 
 ₱     

41,009,861 

Net Book Value  ₱              -   
 ₱      

10,369,776 
 ₱       

831,288  ₱     979,640 
 ₱    

1,434,891 
 ₱       

6,530,690 
 ₱     

20,146,285
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2018

 Construction 
in Progress

Leasehold 
Improvements

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 
Equipment

Transportation 
Equipment

Other Office 
Equipment

Information 
Technology 
Equipment

Total

Cost        
Balance at beginning 
of year

 ₱   
8,439,525 

 ₱        
4,683,730 

 ₱       
804,817  ₱       47,850 

 ₱       
900,499 

 ₱      
35,266,039 

 ₱     
50,142,460 

Additions  
         

10,974,907 
       

1,155,554       1,083,067 
        

1,637,341 
           

3,165,660 
        

18,016,529 

Disposals 
     

(7,441,064)      
         

(7,441,064)
Balance at end of 
year 

 ₱      
998,461 

 ₱      
15,658,637 

 ₱    
1,960,371  ₱   1,130,917 

 ₱    
2,537,840 

 ₱      
38,431,699 

 ₱     
60,717,925 

        
Accumulated 
Depreciation        
Balance at beginning 
of year  ₱              -   

 ₱        
4,500,160 

 ₱       
750,183  ₱       47,849 

 ₱       
778,427 

 ₱      
27,932,471 

 ₱     
34,009,090 

Depreciation and 
amortization                  -   

              
720,911 

          
137,811           14,132 

          
155,957 

           
2,394,163 

          
3,422,974 

Balance at end of 
year  ₱              -   

 ₱        
5,221,071 

 ₱       
887,994  ₱       61,981 

 ₱       
934,384 

 ₱      
30,326,634 

 ₱     
37,432,064 

Net Book Value 
 ₱      

998,461 
 ₱      

10,437,566 
 ₱    

1,072,377  ₱   1,068,936 
 ₱    

1,603,456 
 ₱       

8,105,065 
 ₱     

23,285,861

Depreciation amounting to ₱3,577,797 and ₱3,422,974 in 2019 and 2018, respectively, are shown as separate components of 
operating expenses in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

No additions to property and equipment during the year are treated as non-cash transactions for cash flows.

The value of the Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment of ₱20,146,285, net of accumulated depreciation, as of December 
31, 2019 is 23.40% of the Bank's total net worth. This is lower than the 50% maximum ratio required under BSP regulation (MORB 
Section 109).

The Bank, after due consideration of the assessment of its impairment, believes that there are no indications that the property and 
equipment as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are impaired or its carrying amount cannot be recovered.

11.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

This account consists of real estate properties acquired by the Bank in settlement of loans which were recognized as 
ROPA and accounted for as investment properties to conform to PAS 40. Under Sec.382, ROPA shall be booked initially 
at the carrying amount of the loan plus booked accrued interest less allowance for credit losses plus transaction costs 
such as capital gains tax and documentary stamp tax.  

This account consists of:

 2019 2018 
Building  ₱ 1,953,933  ₱ 3,315,500 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 549,944 464,444
Net Amount 1,403,990 2,851,056
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses - 381,683
Net Carrying Amount  ₱ 1,403,990  ₱ 2,469,373
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Bank’s Investment Property at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 is 
shown in below:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning ₱ 2,469,373 ₱2,916,921
Disposal (1,073,579) -
Acquisition 93,695 2,102
Allowance for Credit Losses - (381,683)
Depreciation (85,500) (67,967)
Balance at end of year net of accumulated depreciation and 
allowance for credit losses  ₱ 1,403,990  ₱ 2,469,373

As at December 31, 2019 the Bank did not provide allowance for credit losses on Investment Property

12.RIGHT OF USE ASSET

The bank is currently leasing its branch building. With the exception of short term leases and leases of low-value 
underlying assets, the lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The bank 
classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner as Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment.

 Building Total
December 31, 2019   
Cost ₱  5,780,122 ₱  5,780,122 
Accumulated Depreciation 1,291,241 1,291,241
Net carrying amount ₱  4,488,881 ₱  4,488,881 

Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the 
present value of the minimum lease payments.

13. OTHER ASSETS

This account is consists of:
 2019 2018 
Financial Assets
Accounts Receivables ₱5,547,327    ₱  6,917,898
Accrued Interest Receivable 1,882,487 -

Non-Financial Assets
Prepaid Expenses 182,129 94,384
Petty Cash Fund 25,000 20,000
Stationery and Supplies on Hand 1,009,439 488,681
Security Deposit 549,542 549,542
Documentary Stamps 169,898 -
Total 9,365,823 8,070,504
Less: Allowance for Probable Losses 4,325,805 2,274,058
Net Other Assets ₱5,040,018 ₱5,796,446
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14. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

Savings Deposits are composed of regular savings accounts which are withdrawable upon demand and those with 
special terms and withdrawable at certain period of time. The total deposits for the year increased by ₱79,356,985 
or 27.83% over the figures of 2018.

On November 21, 2019, the BSP issued Circular No. 1063 which took effect on December 6, 2019 Reduction in 
Reserve Requirements of 4% for savings and time deposits. The required reserve as of December 31, 2019 
amounted to ₱14,578,954 or 4% of the total deposit liabilities. This amount is in the form of deposit with Bangko 
Sentral ng Pilipinas which has a balance of ₱30,261,345 as at December 31, 2019.

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 amounted to ₱2,966,096 and 
₱2,197,506, respectively.

15. ACCRUED INTEREST, TAXES AND OTHER EXPENSES PAYABLE

This account consists of:

Accrued other expenses payable are expenses incurred payable on the following year.

The Accounts Receivable represents various advances and payments made by the Bank of various expenses 
and/or transactions and were charged to the respective accounts of the beneficiaries subject to liquidation. Prepaid 
Expenses are future expenses that have been paid in advance.

The movements in allowance for credit losses on receivable from customers follow:

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of year ₱2,274,058  ₱1,099,854
Payments/Adjustments 2,051,747 1,174,204
Balance at end of year ₱4,325,805  ₱2,274,058

This account is consists of:
2019 % 2018 %

Saving Deposit ₱270,060,290 74.10%  ₱231,004,689 81.02%
Time Deposit 4,452,264 1.22% 863,332 0.30%
Demand Deposit 89,961,302 24.68% 53,248,850 18.68%
Total Deposit Liabilities ₱364,473,856 100.00%  ₱285,116,871 100.00%

2019 2018 

Accrued Other Expenses Payable ₱    428,027 ₱    192,316 
Total ₱    428,027 ₱    192,316
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This account consists of:
 2019 2018
Accounts Payable ₱ 35,006,589 ₱ 26,453,953
Lease Liability (see Note 23) 4,634,330             -   
Withholding Tax Payable 154,283 50,728
SSS, Medicare and Pag-ibig Contribution Payable - 36,584
Total ₱ 39,795,202 ₱ 26,541,265

16. OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable represents various liabilities incurred by the Bank for its own account and the third parties arising 
from short term indebtedness/obligations still outstanding at the cut-off/ reporting date.

Withholding tax payable represents tax withheld on interest expense on deposits, on compensation and other 
transactions on which the bank is obliged to withhold as a withholding agent of the government.

17. EQUITY ACCOUNTS

Ordinary Shares

The ordinary shareholders of the bank are given less priority as to assets liquidation compared to outside creditors 
and preferred shareholders. Ordinary shares are given equal rights and preference as among ordinary 
shareholders. The availability of dividends shall be determined by the net income after deducting any restriction for 
reserve requirements and preferred dividends, if any.

Authorized ordinary share capital as of December 31, 2019 amounted to ₱300,000,000 or 3,000,000 shares with a 
par value of ₱ 100 each. Total subscribed shares amounted to ₱75,000,000 or 750,000 shares and total paid-up 
ordinary shares amounted to ₱68,117,500 or 681,175 shares.

Under Section 121: Minimum Required Capital, Thrift Banks with head office in all other areas outside NCR are 
required to comply with the minimum capital of ₱200 Million within five (5) years. A capital build up program is also 
required to be submitted to the BSP within one (1) year from date of the circulars effectively. As of December 31, 
2019 and 2018, the Bank is not compliant with the minimum capitalization requirement set by the BSP.

The reconciliation of number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period is as follows:
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2019 2018
Common stock Shares Amount Shares Amount
Common stock - 100 par 
value,3,000,000 authorized 
shares     3,000,000  ₱    300,000,000   3,000,000  ₱300,000,000 
Subscribed 750,000 common 
shares at P100 per value per 
share        750,000          75,000,000      750,000      75,000,000 
Common stock at the beginning 
of the year        681,175          68,117,500      681,175      68,117,500 
Issuance of shares of stocks 
from settlement of subscriptions 
receivable                 -                         -                 -                     -   
Common stock at the end of the 
year        681,175          68,117,500      681,175      68,117,500 
Subscription receivable                 -                         -                 -                     -   
Total        681,175  ₱     68,117,500      681,175  ₱ 68,117,500

The reconciliation of retained earnings free during the period is as follows:

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that it complies with externally imposed 
capital requirements and that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
business and to maximize shareholders' value. The Bank maintains sufficient capital necessary to support its 
primary purpose and/or undertakings which it has initiated and promoted. The Bank management involves 
maintaining funding capacity to accommodate fluctuations in asset and liability levels due to changes in the Bank's 
business operations of unanticipated events created by consumer behavior or capital market conditions.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the 
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities.

Retained Earnings - Free
2019 2018

Balance, Beginning   ₱  13,244,869 ₱    5,871,441 
Net Income 7,021,478 8,269,679
Provision and Adjustments (2,294,540) (896,250)
Balance, Ending   ₱  17,971,807 ₱  13,244,869
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Regulatory Qualifying Capital

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Bank’s compliance with regulatory requirements and ratios 
is based on the amount of the Bank’s unimpaired capital (regulatory net worth) reported to the BSP, determined on 
the basis of regulatory accounting policies, which differ from PFRS in some aspects.

BSP Circular No. 688, Revised Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Framework for stand-alone thrift banks, rural banks 
and cooperative banks which took effect on January 1, 2012 represents BSP’s commitment to align existing 
prudential regulations with international standards, which is consistent with the BSP’s goal of promoting the 
soundness and stability of individual banks and of the banking system as a whole. BSP Circular No. 688 replaced 
BSP Circular No. 280 which is primarily based on Basel 1.

Under current banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be less than an amount 
equal to ten percent (10%) of its risk assets. The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of determining the 
capital-to-risk assets ratio to total equity excludes:

• unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP;

• total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to directors, officers, stakeholders and related interests 

(DOSRI);

• deferred tax asset or liability; and

• other regulatory deductions.

Risk assets consist of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out or 
assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by margin deposits, and 
other non-risk items as determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP.

Under BSP Circular No. 360, effective July 1, 2003, the risk-based capital adequacy ratio (CAR) is to be inclusive of 
a market risk charge. BSP Circular No. 560 dated January 31, 2007, which took effect on February 22, 2007, 
requires the deduction of unsecured loans, other credit accommodations and guarantees granted to subsidiaries 
and affiliates from capital accounts for purposes of computing CAR.

Under Section 121 of the MORB, which states that Thrift Bank with head offices in areas outside the National 
Capital Region are required to comply with the minimum capital requirement of ₱200 million. As at December 31, 
2019 and 2018, the Bank is not compliant with the minimum capitalization requirement set by the BSP.

The CAR of the Bank as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, as reported to the BSP, is shown in the table below:

2019 2018
Tier 1 Capital  ₱86,089,307  ₱81,362,369 
Tier 2 Capital         634,236         664,103 
Total Qualifying Capital    86,723,543    82,026,472 
Total Risk-Weighted Assets  461,774,568   173,292,489 
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 18.64% 46.95%
Tier 2 Capital Ratio 0.14% 0.38%

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 18.78% 47.33%
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The Bank's CAR as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was computed as follows:

The Bank has not met the required capital of ₱200 Million for thrift banks with head office outside the National 
Capital Region as stated in Section 121 of the BSP MORB as of December 31, 2019 the Bank has a deficient 
required capital amounting to₱113,910,693.

Financial Performance

The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Bank:

The Bank's ROE, ROA, Net Interest Margin Ratio, and Debt to Equity Ratio as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 
were computed as follows:

A. RETURN ON AVERAGE EQUITY (ROE)

Formula: ROE = Net Income after Tax / Average Capital

A. Calculation of Qualifying Capital
A.1 Tier 1 Capital

Core Tier 1 Capital
  Paid-Up Capital - Ordinary ₱ 68,117,500 ₱ 68,117,500
  Retained Earnings    17,971,807    13,244,869 

Deductions from Core Tier 1 Capital
Deferred Tax Asset, Net of Deferred Tax Liability                   -                    - 

  Total Tier 1 Capital    86,089,307    81,362,369 

A.2 Tier 2 Capital
Upper Tier 2 Capital

  General Loan Loss Provision         634,236         664,103 
  Total Upper Tier 2 Capital         634,236         664,103 

Total Qualifying Capital ₱ 86,723,543 ₱ 82,026,472

2019 2018

A.Return on Average Equity 8.39% 10.65%
A.Return on Average Assets 1.59% 2.58%
A.Net Interest Margin 4.85% 4.32%
A.Debt to Equity Ratio  4.70:1  3.84:1
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 2019 2018
 

Net Income       7,021,478       8,269,679 
Average Equity  

2019      86,089,307  
2018      81,362,369  

 
2018      81,362,369 
2017       73,988,941 

 
Total    167,451,676    155,351,310 

 
Average Equity      83,725,838      77,675,655 

 
Return on Average Equity 8.39% 10.65%

B. RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS (ROA)

Formula: ROA = Net Income after Tax / Average of Total Assets

C. NET INTEREST MARGIN

Formula: Net Interest Margin Ratio = Net Interest Income/ Average Earning Assets 

Formula: Average Earning Assets = Due from BSP + Due From Other Banks+ Loans + Debt Securities Measured 
at Amortized Cost

 2019 2018
Net Income       7,021,478       8,269,679 
Average Assets  

2019    491,105,591  
2018    393,421,199  

 
2018    393,421,199 
2017     248,212,909 

 
Total    884,526,791    641,634,108 

 
Average Equity    442,263,395    320,817,054 

 
Return on Average Assets 1.59% 2.58%
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D. DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

Formula: Debt to Equity Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Equity 

18. OTHER INCOME

This account consists of:

19. COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

This account consists of:

 2019 2018
Net Interest Income      17,428,648      10,770,077 
Average Interest Earnings Assets  

2019    423,624,596  
2018    295,210,349  

 
2018    295,210,349 
2017     203,730,659 

 
Total    718,834,946    498,941,008 

 
Average Loan    359,417,473    249,470,504 

 
Net Interest Margin 4.85% 4.32%

 2019 2018
Total Liabilities    405,016,284    312,058,830 

 
Total Equity      86,089,307      81,362,369 

 
Debt to Equity Ratio  4.70:1  3.84:1

2019 2018
Service Charges ₱        12,707,121 ₱       15,375,207 
ATM Service Fees                3,312,225             2,177,304 
Miscellaneous Income                1,882,387             1,719,321 
DBA-BD Loan Income                    18,999                         -   
Gold Trading Gain/(Loss)                   137,206                         -   
Gain on Sale of Property                   369,714                289,605 
Loss from foreign Exchange                     (6,821)                  95,166 
Total ₱        18,420,831 ₱       19,656,603
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2019 2018
Salaries and Wages ₱            8,181,139 ₱         4,967,136 
Directors Compensation & Committee Member's Fee 482,222 209,417 
Fringe Benefits-Officers and Employees                   116,300                225,133 
SSS, Pag-ibig, Philhealth Contribution and Medical                   859,865                443,506 
13TH Month Pay and Allowances                1,341,497                421,656 
Total ₱          10,981,022 ₱         6,266,847

20. RETIREMENT PLAN

A defined benefit plan should be provided for the retirement of its employees and is required to be paid under RA 
No. 7641. Under PAS 19, "Employee Benefits", the cost of defined contribution plan including those mandated 
under RA No. 7641 should be determined using the term or years of service of an employee.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank has no retirement benefit plan provided for its employees.

21. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

This account consists of:
2019 2018 

Fees and commission ₱      2,105,274 ₱    1,512,793 
Postage, Telephone & Telegram       2,029,111     1,494,766 
Stationeries and Supplies Used          876,094     1,431,680 
Rent          256,980     1,301,990 
Miscellaneous          889,554       815,586 
Power, Light & Water          651,018       814,922 
Security, Messenger & Janitorial Services          911,400       671,327 
Insurance-PDIC          701,411       492,950 
Travelling          220,235       452,343 
Fuel, Oil & Lubricants          294,107       334,114 
Meals          194,667       327,514 
Professional fees          245,000       317,732 
Management and Other Professional Fees          612,115       300,000 
Representation and Entertainment            26,962       267,541 
Membership Fees and Dues          187,791       174,104 
Documentary Stamp used            25,200       125,400 
Fines and Penalties and Other Charges            52,898         96,057 
Legal Fees          505,458         74,795 
Training and Seminars            81,292         62,000 
Donation and Charitable Contributions            27,438         34,995 
Collection Expenses            22,050         34,555 
Repairs and Maintenance          151,897         24,598 
Notarial Expenses            26,610         24,130 
Insurance- Cash in Vault            36,038         20,652 
Insurance- others            27,076           8,923 
Litigation/assets acquired expense                  -             4,244 
Advertising & Publicity          310,728           2,760 
Supervision Fees-BSP            30,000                -   
Bad debts             6,000                -   
Interest Expense for Leasing Arrangements          404,609 -
Total ₱   11,909,011 ₱   11,222,471
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22. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

This account consists of:

23. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The following are the significant commitments and contingencies involving the bank:

The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the 
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other 
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease 
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
The bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment acquired under finance lease is depreciated over the shorter 
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. 

The Bank is leasing premises which was started on January 1, 2017 and will expire on December 31, 2021 with 
monthly rental of ₱14,000 exclusive of VAT and withholding tax of 5% would directly be remitted to the Phil Gov’t 
and shall provide copy of the WT Certificate (BIR Form 2307) to the lessor together with the monthly rental 
payment. This contract shall be effective from the date of execution until terminated in accordance with the 
succeeding paragraphs hereof. This contract is renewable at the sole discretion of the LESSOR. In the event that 
the LESSOR opts to renew the contract, the LESSOR may exercise the right of renewal by giving a written notice 
within sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the contract.

The Bank is sub-leasing premises which started on September 1, 2018 and will expire on August 31, 2023 or a five 
(5) year contract with rental escalation of 5.00% every year thereafter beginning on the second year of the sublease 
agreement. The sub-lease agreement may be renewed upon the mutual consent of the parties. The SUBLESSEE 
shall inform the SUBLESSOR in writing its intent to renew the sublease agreement at least three (3) months prior to 
the expiration of the same. The renewal of this agreement is subject to negotiation, the strict compliance by the 
sublease to all the rules and regulations of the SBMA and the terms and condition of the sublease agreement.

2019 2018 
Amortization Expense - Software ₱      318,400 ₱ 1,292,981 
Depreciation Expense - Information Technology       1,425,878     1,101,182 
Amortization Expense - Leasehold Rights and Improvements       1,229,251       720,911 
Depreciation Expense - Transportation Equipment          124,997         14,132 
Depreciation Expense - Other Office Equipment          227,055       155,956 
Depreciation Expense - Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment          252,217       137,812 
Depreciation Expense - Real and Other Properties Acquired            85,500         67,967 
Depreciation Expense - Right of Use Asset       1,291,241                -   
Total ₱   4,954,537 ₱ 3,490,941

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS
WITHIN 1 YEAR 2-5 YEARS TOTAL

As of December 31, 2019
Lease Payments ₱1,550,400 ₱3,854,400 ₱5,404,800
Finance Charges 324,403 445,610 770,013
Net Present Value ₱1,225,997 ₱3,408,790 ₱4,634,787
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Other commitments and contingencies

a.) The bank has no cases arising from the collection suits pending in courts for claims against delinquent 
borrowers of the bank. No amount of loans and receivablesare under litigation as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

b.) The Bank has no pending legal cases arising from its normal operation that will put the bank as defendant as a 
result of violation of transactions against its clients/ depositors.

c.)The Bank had no outstanding issuances of bank guarantee and other similar credit instruments that will put the 
Bank into obligation in case of non-compliance by the buyer.

d.) As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Bank has no contingent accounts that require disclosure.

24. INCOME TAXES

The Bank is registered with Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority as a Subic Bay Freeport Zone Enterprise under 
Republic Act No. 7227, otherwise known as The Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992. As a SBF 
registered enterprise, the Bank is subject to preferential tax rate on gross income earned as defined under R.A. No. 
7227 in lieu of all national and local taxes. The Bank is also entitled to the rights, privileges and benefits provided 
under R.A. 7227 and its implementing rules and regulations such as but not limited to tax and duty free importation 
of raw materials, capital equipment, and household and personal items for use only within the SBF Zone.

Per Revenue Regulations No. 13-2005, allowable deduction is removed in the calculation of gross income. For 
financial enterprises, gross income shall include interest income, gains from sales and other income, net cost of 
funds.

Under the Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject to percentage and other taxes as well as income taxes. 
Percentage and other taxes paid consists primarily of Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) and Documentary Stamp Tax 
(DST).

Republic Act No. 9337, An Act Amending National Internal Revenue Code, provides that deductible interest 
expense shall be reduced by 33% of interest income subjected to final tax. Current tax regulations also allow a 
NOLCO. The NOLCO may be applied against the Bank’s income tax liability and taxable income, respectively, over 
a three-year period from the year of inception.

The Bank's provision for income tax for the year was computed as follows:

Income Tax Expense consists of:

The current and deferred tax is computed as follows: (Amount is converted to statutory income tax rate of 5%).

Current Tax

 2019 2018
Current  ₱      938,372  ₱  1,001,970 
Deferred - -

Tax Expense (Benefit) reported in Statements of 
Comprehensive Income  ₱      938,372  ₱  1,001,970 
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 2019 2018
Statutory Income Tax:  ₱      397,992  ₱     463,582 
Income Tax Effects of:
Interest Income subject to Final Tax        (631,375)        (205,380)
Reversal (Impairment) Loss             (6,860)              6,860 
Provision for Credit Losses          532,346          129,427 
Interest Expense reduced by 33% income subject to the final 
tax          148,305            84,719 
Other Non-Deductible Expenses          497,964          522,761 
Current Tax Expense  ₱      938,372  ₱  1,001,970

2019 2018
Gross Income per Books  ₱ 7,959,850  ₱9,271,649 
Temporary Difference

Non-Deductible Expenses     9,959,282   10,455,229 
(Reversal) Impairment Loss       (137,206)       137,206 
Provision for Credit Losses    10,646,922     2,588,532 

Permanent Difference
Interest Expense reduced by 33% income subject to 

the final tax     2,966,096     1,694,389 
Interest Income subject to final tax  (12,627,500)   (4,107,610)

Net Taxable Income (Loss)    18,767,444   20,039,394 
Tax Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Normal Corporate Income Tax        938,372     1,001,970 
Minimum Corporate Income Tax                 -                  -   
Income Tax Due        938,372     1,001,970 
Less: Payments/Tax Credits

Agency - 2.00%        247,669       317,437 
BIR - 3.00%        371,504       476,156 

Income Tax Still Due/(Overpayment  ₱    319,199  ₱   208,377

Computation of Income Tax:

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

  Regulatory Reporting

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also 
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties 
may be individuals or corporate entities.

A. Key management personnel, close family members of key management personnel

B. Which are controlled, significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power is held;

C. By key management personnel or their close family members;

D. Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of the Bank’s employees
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Remunerations of Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly. The Bank considers the members of the senior 
management to constitute key management personnel for purposes of PAS 24.

The compensation of key management personnel included under ‘Compensation and benefits’ in the statement 
of income are as follows:

Other Related Party Transactions

This consists of rental payments on lease agreements with related parties. The term of each lease is for a period 
of five (5) years with monthly rental of ₱14,000 and ₱115,200 for PAMCOR and PASBC, respectively. The rental 
is subject to an escalation on a fixed rate of 5.00%

Regulatory Reporting
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has no loan transactions with certain directors, officers, stockholders 
and related interest (DOSRI). Under existing policies of the Bank, these loans are made substantially on the 
same terms as loans to other individuals and businesses of comparable risk. The amount of individual loans to 
DOSRI, of which seventy (70%) must be secured, should not exceed the amount of his deposits and book value 
of his paid-in capital in the Bank. In the aggregate, loans to DOSRI should not exceed the Bank's total capital 
funds or fifteen percent (15%) of the Bank's total loan portfolio, whichever is lower. As of December 31, 2019, the 
Bank has no DOSRI accounts recorded in their book.

26. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER REVENUE REGULATION NO. 15-2010 AND 
19-2011

Percentage Taxes (Gross Receipt Tax)

Under Section 121 of the National Internal Revenue Code, there shall be tax on gross receipts derived from all 
sources within the Philippines by all banks and non-bank financial intermediaries in accordance with the following 
rates:

a) On interest commissions and discounts from lending activities as well as income from financial leasing, on the 
basis of remaining maturities of instruments from which such receipt are derived:

2019 2018

Compensation and Benefits ₱   752,222 ₱   209,417

Name of Related Party Total Amount of 
Transaction Amount Paid Outstanding Balance

PASBC ₱1,410,588 ₱1,410,588 ₱               -
PAMCOR 176,842 176,842 -
TOTAL ₱1,587,430 ₱1,587,430 ₱               -
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Maturity period of five (5) years or less .........................................................5%
Maturity period is more than five (5) years.....................................................1%       

b) On dividends..............................................................................................0%

c) On royalties, rentals of property, real or personal, profit from exchange and all other items treated as gross 
income under Section 32 of the NIRC.............................................7%

d) On net trading gains within the taxable year on foreign currency, debt securities, derivatives and other similar 
financial instruments .................................................................7%

Documentary Stamp

Pursuant to revenue regulation No. 13-2004 dated December 23, 2004 " Implementing provisions of Republic Act 
No.9243, an act rationalizing the provisions of the documentary stamp tax of the Internal Revenue Code of 1997 
(as amended), below are some of the circular affecting the operation of bank and non-bank financial 
intermediaries:

Section 51 of Republic Act No 10963: New Rate of DST on Original Issuance of Shares of Stock
There shall be one peso (₱2.00) on each two hundred pesos (₱ 200.00) or fractional part thereof of the par value 
of such shares of stock. Provided that in case of original issue of shares of stocks without par value, the amount 
of documentary stamp herein prescribed shall be based upon the actual consideration for the issuance of such 
shares of stocks. Provided, further, that in the case of stock dividends, on the actual value represented by each 
share.

Section 55 of Republic Act No 10963: New Rate of DST on all Debt Instruments (Documents, Loan 
Agreements, Instruments and Papers)
One peso and fifty centavos (₱1.50) on each two hundred pesos (₱ 200.00) or any fractional part thereof of the 
issue price of any such debt instrument. If the debt instrument has a maturity date of less than one (1) year, the 
DST due shall be computed based on the number of days the instrument is outstanding as a fraction of 365 
days.

Taxes and Licenses

Withholding taxes in 2019 are categorized into:

a. Local 2019
Business Permit ₱44,559
b. National
Annual Registration - BIR 500
   
Total-Taxes and Licenses  ₱ 45,059 

Paid: 2019
Final withholding tax on interest expense ₱     593,220
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits 126,771
Expanded withholding tax 88,264
Total ₱     808,255
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Tax Assessments and Cases
As at December 31, 2019, the Bank has no outstanding assessment notice from the BIR or cases in court or 
bodies outside the BIR.

Revenue Regulation (RR) No 19-2011
The Bank reported the following schedules and information on taxable income and deductible expenses to be 
taken in 2019:

Sale of Services
The Bank's taxable sale of services amounted to ₱18,767,444 and income subject to final income tax and are 
exempt from tax amounted to ₱12,627,500 for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Cost of Services

27. OTHERS

1. Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)

The Bank had completely satisfied the reporting requirements as required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 
(BSP) and RA 9160 as amended by RA 9194 otherwise known as the Anti-Money Laundering Act.

2. As of December 31, 2019, all of the Bank's directors had undergone the requirements for corporate 
governance as confirmed by the Monetary Board as mandated by MORB Section 911.

3.Report Liabilities that the report is fully covered with insurance and compliant with PDIC.

28. AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF SECURED LIABILITIES AND ASSETS PLEDGED

As of December 31, 2019, the Bank has no secured liabilities and assets pledged.

 2019
Details of the Bank's tax deductible cost of services accounts are as follows:

Direct Charges - Salaries and Wages and Other Benefits ₱10,981,022
Direct Charges - Insurance (PDIC) 701,411
Direct Charges - Supervision Fee 30,000
Direct Charges - others (interest expense net of 33% limit)

Interest expense 2,966,096
Less: Limit (33% of interest income subj. to final tax) (2,966,096)

    Direct Charges - Rent 376,910
    Direct Charges – Depreciation & Amortization of Software and IT 1,744,277
    Other Direct Charges 4,096,727
Total ₱17,930,347
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